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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,

The members of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (inciuding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
inciuding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(“the Act”) in the manncr so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and its Loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial stalements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to
1. Note 39 to the financial statcments which explains that the extent to which COVID-19
pandemic will impact the Company's operations and financial results is dependent on
future developments, which are highly uncertain.

2. Note No . 4, to the financial statements , which explains that the Company migrated to the
new card management System (CCMS) Tirst vision” during the quarter ended 30th Sept
21. Subsequently all the transaction processing for credit card business is being routed
through the new CCMS. As the implementation of the said system is in process, Cash and
Cash Equivalents include Rs 4.85 million (net) in respect of which the clearing is still
under progress.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Qther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report therecon. The Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report is expecled to be made available to us after this auditor's
repott.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a truc and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CITOT.

In preparing the financial statements, management and the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

Process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or crror and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatcment of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal conttol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(@) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of
Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit cvidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concetn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represcnt the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves {air presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged
with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“thc Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A” a statement on the matters specificd in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to
be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Act, the compliances of
which is set out in the Annexute “B”,

3. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a). We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b). In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as il appcars from our examination of those books.

(¢). The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (inciuding other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statcment dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d). In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Scction 133 of the Act.

(¢). On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f). With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure “C”,

(g). With respect (o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rulc 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 36 to the financial statements;
ii, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. There were no amounts which were requircd to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR ASL & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
{(Regn. No 101921 W)

T

(Shikha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 22136484 ATKOKL7256
DATED: -May 04, 2022
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Annexure “A” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the
Financial Statements of BOB Financial Soluctions Limited for the Year Ended 31* March
2022.

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and
explanations given to us, wec state as under. Maiters specified in clauses (i)(c)
(e)Gii)a)(e),(vi),(vii), (ix) (&) (B,(xi) (b) (&), (xi), (xv), Gevi)(b) (¢) (d), (xvid), (xviid), (xx) &
(xxi) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2016 do not apply to the
Company. Accordingly no comments have been made on the matters not applicable to the
company.

(i)
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
asscts.

(¢) As per the information and explanations given to us, fixed asscts have been physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification
and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(ii )

(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the inventory has been physically
verified by the management during the year at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explapations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of Inventory were noticed on verification between the
physical stock and the book records.

(b) As per information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, during the year under review, the company has been sanctioned working capital
limit in excess of T 50 million from bank on the basis of security of the current assets.
As informed to us , the same was disbursed on the last day of the year under review
and the filing of the quarterly statements and returns , ol the currents assets secured,
was not due till the year end.

(i) According to information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, and based on examination of the books and records, during the
year under review the Company has not provided any guarantee and security to any
parties; but the company has made investments and granted loans and advances in the
nature of loans, secured and unsecured during it normal course of business.

.n"l
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(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
are, prima facie not prejudicial to the company’s interest

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the books and records, in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans
granted by the company , the schedule of repayment of principle and payment of
intercst has been stipulated and repayments or receipts are regular , cxcept for the
credit impaired cases .

(c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us , as at the end of the year
under review , the over due for more than 90 days is Rs. 1078.84 millions (bcfore
making provision for Impairment Loss Rs. 910.54 millions ). According to the
information and cxplanations given to us , the company is taking necessary sieps to
recover the same.

(d) As per information and explanations given to us, during the year under review the
company has not any granted loan and advances in the nature of loan , repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment , to promoters and
related parties defined under section 2(76) of the Companies Act 2013.

(iv ) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Investments
made during the year under review, the company has complied with the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) As per information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act 2013
and Rules made there under.

(vi)

(a) As per the records of the Company and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is regular in deposiling with appropriate authoritics
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and
other statutory ducs, to the extent applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us , there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more
than 6 months from the datc they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us , therc are no of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of customs and duty of excise duty, value added tax as at March 31, 2022 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute.

(vii )
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not
defaulted in payment of dues to its bank.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us the company is not declared
as a willful defaulter by any banks or {inancial institutions or lenders

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us , and on overall
examination of the financial statcments of the company , funds raised by the company on
short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposcs.

(viii )  As per information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the
company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year
under review. However certain instances of customer frauds on the company have
been reported during the year. As informed to us , these primarily relate to the
fraudulent usage of the credit cards issued by the company and the total amount
involved is Rs. 10.30 million during the year under review.

(ix ) As per information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion , based on the information and explanations given to us , the company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for the
period under audit;

(xi) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 23" October 1999.
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( xii ) On the basis financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realisations of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying financial
statements , as per ihe information and explanations given to us, about the board of
directors and management plans , and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our nolice that causcs us to belicve
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date ol balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

4

(Shikha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL. UDIN: 22136484 AIKOKL7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the Financial Statements

of BOB Financial Solutions Limited for the Year Ended 31" March 2022,

Directions under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have examined the books of accounts of the BOB Financial Solutions Limited [or the year
ended March 31, 2022 and we are submitting our comments and answers to the questions asked in
the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, according to the best of our
information and explanations given to us by the management and as appears from the examination
of the books of accounts and records produced before us by the Company, which are as under.

S. Directions
No.

Reply

1. | Whether the company has system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If no, the implications
of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the
along with the
implications, if any, may be stated.

accounts financial

As per the information and explanation given to
us and based on the examination of records on
the test check basis , the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting transaction
through IT system.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts /loansf/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company’s inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Whether  such properly
accounted for? (In lender is

CAseSs are
case,

Government company, then its direction
is also applicable for statutory auditor of

lender company).

Based on our audit procedures and on the basis
of information and explanations given to us, no
restructuring of any existing loan facility and no
case waiver/write off from the Company’s lender
in respect of loan facility during the year under
review reported.

3. | Whether funds (grant/subsidy ctc.)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/ State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions?
List the cases of deviation,

As per information & cxplanation given to us and
the records produced before us, no funds
(grant/subsidy etc.) received/ receivable for
specific from  Central/  State
Government or its agencies during the year under
review. Reimburscment receivable under the

schemcs
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“Incentive Scheme for promotion of RuPay Debit
Cards and Low Value BHIM-UPI transaction (P2ZM)”
is not considered as Grant / subsidy for this
purpose not considered as Grant / subsidy for this

purpose.

FOR ASL & CO,
Chartered Accountants
{Regn. No 101921 W)

.

S a Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 22136484 AIKOKL7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022
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Annexure “C” to_the Independent Auditor’s Report Of Even Date on the Financial
Statements of BOB Financial Solutions Limited.

Report en_the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BOB Financial
Solutions Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the hnancial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10}) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements and, both issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements were established and maintained and
whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and gvaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internai contro based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with refercnce to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements inclodes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the mainlenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made enly in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls to with reference the financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
matter described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph above, the company has, in all matcrial
respects, an adequate internal financial confrols with reference to the financial statements and
such internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were operating
cffectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to the financial
statements criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial
Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR ASL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Regn. No 101921 W)

%

(Shikha Jain)
PARTNER
Membership No. : 136484
PLACE: - MUMBAL UDIN: 22136484AIKOKL7256
DATED: - May 04, 2022




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Clid: UGS990MHF994GOI081616

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

{Figurc in Rupees in milions, unless otherwise stated)

s at

Particulars Notes As at
3 March 2022 | 31 March 202+
| ASSETS

1 Financial assels
Cash and cash equivalents 4 695.97 158.84
Bank balance other lhan above 5 012 -
Trade receivables 8 238.44 363.91
Loans 7 12,454.50 7.430.30
Investments 8 - -
Other financial assets g 150.00 139.63

. 2 Non-financial assets
Inventories 29.64 1.00
Deferred {ax assets {nef} 10 494,14 441 86
Properiy, plant and equipment 11 30.48 127.00
Right-of-use assets 12 £3.55 81.29
Intangible assels under devclopment 13 0.63. 19.91
CHher intangible assets 14 160.08 29.37
Other non-financial assets 15 867.73 678.40
Total assets 15,185.29 9,471.49
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

1 Financial liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables 16
{i) tota! outstanding dues of micre enterprises and 15.45 1.69
small enterprises
{if) lotal outstanding dues of credilors other than 139,07 70.54
micra enterprises and small enlerpriscs
Debht securities 17 985.02 4.064.28
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 18 10,116.57 2,584.65
Other financial liabilities 19 230.81 170.58

2 Non-financial liabilitles
Provisions 20 666,67 438.27
Other nen-financial fiabilities 21 212,22 230.97
Total liabilities 12,375.814 7,560.98
Equity
Eguity share capital 22 2,750.00 1,750.00
Other equity 23 59.48 160.51
Tota! equity 2,809.43 1,910.51
Total liabilities and eguity 15,185.2% 9,471.49

1-52

The accompanying nofes are anintegral part of the
financial stalements

As per our report of even date
For ASL & Co.
Chartered Accountants

[Firmggtration No. 101921W]
G

Shikha Jain
Partner
{Membership No. 136484}

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4th May 2022.

Fsanjlv Chadha

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
BOB Financial Solutions Limited

Chaiman
(DIN:08368448)

Dprns

Pocja Kerhani
Chief Finahcial Officer
(PAN:AHEPB7049P)

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 4th May 2022.

N S

Shallendra Sirgh

J—

T
e

Managing Director & CEO

(DIN: 08623335)
- +

Deem

Company Secretary
(PAN:BVLPS3134E)

/el




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH1994G 01081616

Statement of Praofit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{Figure it Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended’

Partlculars Notes For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue from operations
{i} interest income 24 1,854.09 1,094.62
(i) Income from fees and services 25 2,863.31 2391.58
{iii} Income frotn Consultancy 111.08 114.48
(ivt Business devefopment incentives 27.53 28,19
HH] Total revenue from aperations 4,955.01 3,528.87
{n Other income 26 40.52 133.82
] Total income (f + 1) 4,996.53 3,662.69
Expenses
{iy Finance cost 27 : 441.1¢ 279.80
{iiy Impairment on financlal instrements 28 1,028.84 852.83
fiiy Employee benefit expenses 29 664.83 £85.00
{iv} Depreciation, amortization and impairnent 1011 &12 151.14 168.76
(v} Operating and Other expenses 30 2,870.12 2,000.63
{vi) Corporate social responsibility expenses - -
(iv) Total expanses {IV) 5,056.12 3,888.03 |
V) Profit/{loss) for the period {ill-1Y) {59.59} (225.34)
Tax Expense; 31
{(a) Current tax 98.07 7468
(b) Deferred fax (credit} {53.37 (204.00)
(c} Income tax for earlier year - -
N} Total Tax expense 44,70 (125.32)
Profit/{loss) for the year (V - Vi) (104,29) {96.01)
(vl Other comprehensive income
A Items that wiil not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gainf{loss) on defined benefit plan 435 1.95
Income tax fmpact {1.09) {0.57)
Tolal (A) 3.26 1.39
B ltems that will ba classified te profit or Joss
Reclassification adjustments to statement of profit and . .
lass
Income tax impact - -
Total {B) - -
Cther comprehensive income (A + B) .25 1.38
{VII Total comprehensive income for the year {101.03} {94.62)
(1%} Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 32 {0.41} (0.55)
Diluted {Rs.) [0.41) (0.59)
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the financial 1-62
statements

As per aur report of even date
For ASL & Co.
Chartered Accauntants

[Firm tlon No, 101921wW]
]

Shifta Jain
Partner
{Membership No. 136484)

Flace: Mumbal
Dale: 04Lh May 2022

Cha[rman
(DIN:0B368448)
Y

For and on behalf of the Board af Directors
BOB Fingncial Solutlons Limited

Shallendra Smgﬁq

(DIN: 08623335)

e:y;d—curnelfus
CoMpany Secretary

{PAN:BVLPS3134E)

Chief Finakclal Officer
{PAN:AHERRZ049P)

Place: Mumbai
Date; 4th May 2022,

Managing Director & CEQ
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BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED

GCIN: US5990MH1994G0OI081616

Cash Flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millicns, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year-ended | .For the year endad
3 March 2622 31 March 2021°
Operating activities
Profit before tax {55.59) {225.34)
Adfustmertis to reconcife profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciafion & amorisation . i61.14 168.76
Impairment on financlal instrumenls 1,028.84 852,83
Profit on sale of fixed assats (0,06} 0.77)
Write off of fixed assets 0.77 274
Interest on lease labilities 517 7.34
Income from mutual fund {5.34) (4.47)
Finance cost 436.02 272,46
Operating Profit Before Wotldng Capltal Changes 1,556.86 1,074.55
Working capital changes
{Decrease) Increase in trade payables 82.29 (80.57)
{Decrease)/ Increase in other financial Ifabillties 60.23 {a1.25)
{Decrease) Increase in other non financlal liabilities {18.75) 11313
{Decrease) Increasa in provisions 23275 105,63
(increase)f Decrease in Financlal assels inans {6,053.04) (4,300.87)
(Increase)f Decrease in Olher financial assels {10.37) (76.53)
{increase)l Decrease in Inventory (28.64) 09.08
{Increase) Decrease in other non financial assels {227.21) (242,88}
(Increase) Decrease in trade receivables 125.47 82.22
Income lax paid _ {60.20) {134.70)|
Net cash flows fromi{used in} operating activities (5,897.47) {4,557.25)
Investing activifies
Purchase of property, plant & equipment {'PPE") including intangible assels {14910} {62.07)
Sale proceeds fram PPE 0.08 0.96
Purchase of nvestments (12,369.75) (7,449.63}
Sale Proceed from Investments 12,375.08 7,454.10
Met cash flows fromf{used in) investing activities (143.70} (56.65)
Financing activities :
Proceeds from debt securitles 7,531.82 4,064.28
{ssue of Equity share 4,000.00 -
Repayment of debt securilies {3,069.26} {218.88)
Interest on lease liablities (5.17} {7.34)
Interest paid (426.02} {272 46)
Met cash generatedf{used in} financing activities 5,021.46 3,565.60
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 537.25 2625
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 158.84 132.58
Gash and vash eqdlvalents as at the end of the year 696,09 158,84

Mote:

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "ingirect Melhod” as sel out in Indian accounting standard {Ind AS) -7 - ‘Cash Flow
Statements' notified under Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies [Accounting Slandards) Amendment Rules,

2016,

2. Camponent of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in ‘Mote 4: Cash and cash equivalenl' and Hate 5- Bank balance olher than cash and cash

equivalent.

A5 per our report of even date

For ASL B Co. For and on Gehaif of the Board of Clrectors

Chartered Accountants
[Firm Registrgtion No. 101921W]
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" Sanjfiv Chadha Shallendra Singh
Managing Director & CEO
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Comparly Secretary
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BOB FINANGIAL SOL:UTIONS LIMITED
CIN: U65990MH1994G0O1081616

Statement of changes in equity

- {Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

A, 'Equity Share capital

Particular Number of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2020 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Changes in equity share capilal during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10,00,00,000 1,000.00
Balance as at 31 March 2022 27,50,00,000 2,750.00

B. Other Equity

Particular __Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory Reserve | Retained Earnings ’
Balance as at 1 April 2020 35217 (97.04) 255,14
Add: Loss for {he year -
Add: Other comprehensive income - 1.39 1.39
“Transfer lo/from retained earnings - (26.01) (96.01)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 35217 {191.66) 160.51
Add: Loss for the year -
Add: Other comprehensive income - 326 3.26
Transfer toffram retained eamings - {104.29) (104,28}
Balance as at 31 March 2022 352,47 {292.69) 59.48
As per our report of even dale
For ASL & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartared Accountants BOB Financial Solutions Limited
[Firm Regilstration Mo, 1015921W]
ot adl
ShikhaJain Shailendra Singh"
Partner Managing Director & CEQ

{Membership No. 136484)

Place: Mumbal
Date: 0dth May 2022

(DIN:08368448)

Chief Finandial Officer
{PANIAHEPB7049P}

Place: Mumbai

Date: 0d4th May 2022

(DIN: 08G623335)

a5

ornefius

Company Secretary
{PAN:BVLPS3134E)




BOB FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED
Accounting Policies
Note 1: Corperate Information

BOB Financial Solutions Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank of Baroda and a Non-Deposit
accepting Systemically Important Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC-ND-SI”), holding a
Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI"). The Company is engaged in the
business of issuing credit cards to consumers in India. It also provides support to Bank of Baroda by
carrying out its merchant acquiring operations and manpower/consultancy services. Until December
2020, the Company was also supporting Bank of Baroda's overseas territory subsidiaries/sponsored
RRB’s for their Debit Cards operation, however all activities relating to these have been now
transferred to respective overseas territory subsidiaries/ sponsored RRB's.

During the year ended March 2022, Company has issued 10 tranches of listed Commercial Papers
which are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). This was first ever listed issuance by the Company.

Note 2: Basis of preparation and presentation
a. Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of india under the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
(amendments) Rules, 2016 and as amended from time to time. Any application guidance/
clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are
issued/ applicable.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are
significant to the Company are discussed in Note 3 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions,

b. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have bheen prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (ind AS)
on the basis of Going Concern concept and under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, and in accordance with the accounting policies set out below which are in conformity with Ind
As. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the year.
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¢. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in millions and rounded off to the nearest
two decimals, except when otherwise indicated. '

d. Presentation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company are presented in order of liquidity and as per Division (Il of
the Schedule Il to of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA}. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current} is presented
in Note 32- Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to
settle on a net basis in the folowing circumstances:
i. The normal course of business
it. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

e. Statement of Compliance
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

Note 3: Significant accounting policies
3.1. Revenue from operations

The Company's operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues such as interest
income on financial assets i.e. Overdue credit card outstanding/EMI balances, fee earned, target
incentive offered by network partner, service charges from merchant establishment, rental income
from machines deployed, income from consultancy services etc. Other fee and charges include cheque
bounce charge, late fees, over limit fees etc.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payments and excfuding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
Government. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made.

Revenue includes the following:
a) Interest income

Interest income includes interest income on overdues from credit card holders and on EMI based
advances.




Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those classified as held for trading
or designated at fair value are recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Finance expense’ in the statement
of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. In view of uncertainty of realization of
income in case of credit impaired assets, such income is accounted for only on receipt basis. Recovery
from impaired debts written off is recognised as income based on actual realisations from customers

b) income from fees and services

The Company sells credit card membership to card holders, income earned from the provision of
membership services is recognised as revenue over the period for which services are provided, net of
reversals/ cancellations.

Revenue from interchange income is recognised when related transaction occurs, or service is
rendered. Other service revenue consists of value-add services provided to the card holders. These
other service revenues are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occur or
services are rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

¢} Service charges from merchant establishment

All service charges in the form of commissions (MDR}, support fee and POS rental related to merchant
operations are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occurs or services are
rendered as revenue is accrued at the point of sale for these services.

d) Other Income

All other income including income from debit card, consultancy services are recognised in the same
period in which related transactions occurs or services rendered at fair value of consideration net off
expected reversals/ cancellations as revenue is accrued at the point of sale.

e) Business Development Incentive

The Company enters into long-term contracts with network partners for various programs designed
to build payments volume, increase product acceptance. Revenue recognition is based on estimated
performance and the terms of the business arrangements.

f} Unidentified receipts/ old balances & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’ accounts for
tack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheet. The estimated
unidentified receipts/ old balances aged up to 3 years is written back as income on balance sheet date.
The liabitity for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as income.

g) Income from Investments

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as income at the time of
sale.




3.2 Expenditure
Expenses are recognised on accrual basis.

a) The incremental cost of acquiring a customer is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the
behavioural life of the customer

b) Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Any expenditure which is directly attributable to borrowing is capitalized and
amortised over the life of borrowing loan.

3.2.1 Retirement and other emplovee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits including short term compensated absences and statutory bonus/ performance
bonus/incentives payable wholly within twelve months of the end of the period in which the
- employees render the related services are recognised in respect of employee service upto the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution schemes

Retirement/ Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution
plan. The Company has no cbligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. The Company’s contributions to the above Plan are charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b} Defined Benefit schemes

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity to all employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum payments
to vested employees on resignation, retirement, or death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of
service as required under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". Vesting occurs upon completion of five
years of service,

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit M'ethod, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows.
The discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plan, are based on the market yields of Government bonds as on the valuation date.

The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit
credit method on the balance sheet date. Th_e difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of
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-the gratui{y of employees at the yéar end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/ (liability)
in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. the Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses an curtailments and
nonroutine settlements

Net interest expense or income remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined henefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.”

Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absence and deferred compensation as
per the policy of the Company, the liability in respect of which is provided, based on an actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the year end. The actuarial valuation method
used by the independent actuary for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in the actuarial
assumptions are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they
arise.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. Unutilised leave balance that
accrues to employees as at the year-end is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on an
undiscounted basis.

National pension scheme (NPS) The Company makes contributions to National Pension Systerm (NPS),
for qualifying employees. Under the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of the payrolt costs to NPS. The contributions payable to NPS by the Company are at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes. The share of Companies contribution is charged to profit and
loss account.

3.2.2 Other expenses

All Other expenses are recognized in the period they occur.
3.2.3 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Current / Deferred tax is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination
or to an item which is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case
the related income tax is also recognised accordingly. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and the deferred tax assets and the defe_rr_e_d tax jiabilities relate to income taxes levied by
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the same taxation aufhority. The Company on'ly off-sets its-deferred tax assets against liabilities when
there is both a legal right to offset and it is the Company’s intention to settle on a net basis.

i) Current Taxes

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable/ receivable in respect of taxable profit/ loss for a
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
. are never taxable or deductibie in accordance with applicable tax faws. Current tax assets and liabilities
for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authorities. Interest income / expenses and penalties, if any, related to income tax are
included in current tax expense. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
" that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of reporting date in India where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive incomie or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

iy Deferred Taxes

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

1. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or Jiability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

2. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

A deferred tax liability is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end
of the reparting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carry forward of unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except when the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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. Unrecoghised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it becomes probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit.or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income tax benefits or expenses in the Statement of
profit and loss except for tax related to the fair value re-measurement of financial assets classified
through other comprehensive income, foreign exchange differences and the net movement on cash
flow hedges, which are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income {OC1). These exceptions
are subsequently reclassified from OCI to the statement of profit and loss together with the respective
deferred loss or gain. The Company also recognises the tax consequences of payments and issuing
costs, related to financial instruments that are classified as equity, directly in equity.

3.3. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognised
when the entity hecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

3.3.1 Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

3.3.2 Initial measurement

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their
fair value, '

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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A financial asset and a financial lability are offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet
when there is a current legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and it is intended
to either settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.3.3 Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial instruments

1. Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

i) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

These financial assets comprise of bank balances, overdue credit card outstanding/EMI balances,
trade receivables, and other financial assets.

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) if
these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

ii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of
principal and interest {SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding; and

h) Are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income within
a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or foss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income (except for investment in equity shares) is
reclassified from equity to the income statement.

iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, are
measured at FVTPL, Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit and

foss.,
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ftems at fair value through profi{ or loss comprise:

a) Investments {including equity shares) and stock in trade held for trading;

b} Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

¢) Debtinstruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are
measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
they arise.

2. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
fiability and an equity instrument,

2.1 Financial Liabilities

i) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR. (Effective Interest Rate)

ii) Undrawn credit limits on cards:

Undrawn credit limits on cards are commitments which the Company is required to pay on behalf of
the customer based on pre-specified terms with the customer. Undrawn credit limits on cards
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

2.2. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

3.3.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business.
line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

3.3.5 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

1. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
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The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company transfers the financial asset if, and only if, either:

i) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset,
or

ii) tt retains the rights to the cash flows but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
i) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii} The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset but has transferred control of the asset,

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and
has retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

2. Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.3.6 Impairment of financial assets

1. Overview of the ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL} model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk
exposure,

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehénsive income
- Undrawn credit limits

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.
The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime

expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since arigination, in
which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’.expected credit loss. Lifetime ECLs are the
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expectéd credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expécted life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. ' '

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company’s policy
for grouping financial assets measured on a collective basis is explained in Note 41.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument,

Based on the above, the Company categorises its foans & advances into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3
as described below by comparing the credit risk of the financial instrument as at the reporting date,
with its credit risk as at the date of initial recognition.

Stage 1: 12-months ECL
All exposures that are not credit impaired and where there has not been a sighificant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit
impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. Exposures with days past due (DPD) fess than
or equal to 30 days are classified as stage 1.

For these assets, 12-month ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying
amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that are not credit impaired, are classified under this stage.

Exposures with DPD greater than 30 days but less than or equal to 89 days are classified as stage 2.
For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognized, but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross
carrying amount of the asset,

Stape 3: Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

Financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.

For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised on principal
outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD equal to or more than 90 days are classified as stage
3.
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2. The calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECL based on a probability weighted approach to measure the expected cash
shortfalls. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over
a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed pefiod, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PD is further
explained in Note 41: Risk Management,

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure ata futdre default
date, considering expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of
principal and interest, expected drawdowns, and accrued interest from missed payments. The concept
of EAD is further explained in Note 41: Risk Management.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where
a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It
is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The concept of LGD is further explained in Note 41:
Risk Management.

Undrawn Credit limits

When estimating ECL for undrawn Credit limits, the Company estimates the expected portion of the

credit card limits that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the expected
shortfalis in cash flows if the limit is drawn down.

Forward Looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology
to reflect such macro-economic trends reasonably.

Write-offs -

Company is following the write off policy to undertake annual NPAs. The accounts, which have been
classified as NPA for 180 days or more and for which no payment is received for one year, are written

off as Bad Debts.




Presentation of allowance for ECL in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the balance sheet as follows:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
assets;

b} Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, the company
presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a
deduction from the gross carr?ing amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance |
over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision;

3.4. De_termination of Fair Vall_.le

On initial recognition, alt the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments (as explained in
note 40) at fair value on each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

i} In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
i) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
hest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have heen derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.
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Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs-that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument's life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and vyield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

3.6 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash future, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Tangible Assets

Under the previous GAAP {Indian GAAP), all assets were carried in the balance sheet at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The Company has considered
the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance with ind AS 101 First Time
adoption.

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are
initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase price {including non-
refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, PPE are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from
the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised. The expenditures that are incurred
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after the item of PPE has been put to use; such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations
where the said expenditure can be measured reliably and is probable that future economic henefits
associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate
asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis & written down value basis using the rates arrived
at based on the usefui lives estimated by the management.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulars Useful lives estimated by the | Method of Depreciation

Management (Same as specified

in Schedule Il of the Companies

Act, 2013)
EDC 5 years S5LM
Computer Hardware 3 years SLM
Computer Hardware SE 6 years SLM
Computer Software 5 years SLM
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years WDV
Vehicles B years WDV
Office Equipment 5 years WDV
Plant & Machinery 15 years SLM

Changes in the expected useful life- areaccounted for by ‘changing thé amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible Assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. The
Company has considered the carrying amount as per previous GAAP as deemed cost in accordance
with tnd AS 101 First Time adoption.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development
costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profitand loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

The Costs of Intangible assets are amortized over the period of 5 years, on Straight Line Method

Intangible assets under development:

Projects under which intangible assets are not yet ready for their intended use are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses.
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Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, an
estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset / cash generating unit (CGU) is made. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair value less costs of disbosal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset'is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit (CGU).

Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. in determining fair value less costs of
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can he identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

An asset or CGU whose carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to
whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting
years may no longer exist or may have decreased.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
3.9 Leases (As a lessee)

tdentifying a lease

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contain, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company assesses whether:

-The contract involves the use of an identified asset, this may be specified explicitly or implicitly.
-The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use, and

-The Company has right to direct the use of the asset.
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Recognition of right of use asset

The Company recognises a right of use asset at the lease commencement date of lease and comprises
of the initial lease liability amount, plus any indirect costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received. The Company has adopted approach 2B as per Ind AS 116
where the right to use asset is recognised at same value at which liability is recognised.

Subsequent measurement of right of use asset

The right of use asset is subsequently amortized using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of
the lease term, whichever is lesser. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.

Recognition of lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments net of cash lease
incentives that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequent measurement of lease liability

{ease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease lability using the incremental
borrowing rate implicit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., thase
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.10 Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as finance cost.
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A contract is considered as onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived by the
Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the
contract.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.

Provision for Bonus points redemption

The Company has a reward point program which allows card members to earn paints based on spends
through the cards that can be redeemed for cash. The liability for reward points outstanding as at the
year-end and expected tc be redeemed in the future is estimated based on an actuarial valuation.

3.11 Inventories: Inventory, if any, is valued at cost (arrived on FIFO basis) or net realizable value,
whichever is lower.

The cost for inventory valuation includes the amount of tax or other such amount {other than those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities such as Input Tax Credit} incurred to bring the
goods to the place of its location and condition as at the year end.

3.12 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or an incurring expenses;
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax / value added taxes paid, except:

a} When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable.

b) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

3.13 Earning Per Share

The Company reparts basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
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3.14 Contingeneies and events accurring after the Balance Sheet date

Events occurring after the date of the Balance Sheet, which provide further evidence of conditions
that existed at the Balance Sheet date or that arose subsequently, are considered up to the date of
approval of accounts by the Board of Directors, where material.

3.15 Foreign currency transaction

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences, if any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at the closing exchange rates. Resultant exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and related assets and liabilities are accordingly restated in the Balance
Sheet. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency at the Balance Sheet date are reported using exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

3.16 Statutory Reserve

tn accordance with section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934, the Company creates a reserve fund and
transfers therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
Statement of Profit and loss before any dividend is declared.

3.17 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimates are revised, and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are hased on the
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the mast significant effect on the amounts recoghized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

3.18 Critical judgements and key source of estimation

3.18.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:

3,18.1.1 Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest {SPP(} and the business model test. The Company determines the business
model at a level that reflects how Company's financial assets are managed together to achieve a
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particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held.
Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if itis not appropriate whether
there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those
assets.

3.18.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

3.18.2.1 Effective Interest Rate {EIR) Methed

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1, recognises interestincome / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of toans taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at
various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavicur and
life cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument.

3.18.2.2 Impairment of nen-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount,

3.18.2.3 Provision and contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.
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When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of econamic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. '

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates. ' '

3.18.2.4 Leases- Estimating the incremental Borrowing Rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR thérefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the 1BR using observable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

3.18.2.5 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

3.18.2.6. Card life

£stimation of card life relies on behavioural life trend established basis past customer behaviour/
observed life cycle
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BoB Financia! Solution Ltd

Notes to financial staternents for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

' {Figure in Rupeas in millions, unless atherwise stated)

Note 4: Cash and cash eqﬁivale_nts

As at

Particulars As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Cash on hand 0.02 0.02
Balances with bank* 695.95 158,82
Total 695.97 158.84

The Company has taken bank overdraft, however, the same is not considered as a part of cash and cash equivalent for cash flow statement.
*includes unspent amount of CSR of Rs. .01 mn {ying in current account.
The Company migrated to the new card management System (CCMS)"First vision” during the quarter ended.30th Sept 21. Subsequently all the

transaction processing for credit card business Is being routed thravgh the new CCMS. As the implementation of the said system is In process, Cash
and Cash Equivalents includes Rs 4.85 million {net} where the clearing is under progress.

Note 5: Bank bafance other than above

Particulars As at As at-
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 0.12 -
12 mosths (lien marked)
Total 0.12 -

Nate 6: Trade Receivahles

Parficulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Receivable considered good

- Unsecured

To be realised within twelve months after reporting date: 202.67 308.32
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date: 35.77 54.59
Total 238.44 363.91
Trade receivables include unbilled revenue 100.72 79.69

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6|6 months 1-2 2-3 More than |Total
months -1 year Years years 3 years
(1} Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 172.57 i2.73 40.09 13.05 - 238.44
Total 17257 12.73 40.09 13.05 - 238.44

As at 3ist March 2021

Particulars Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment
Less than 6|6 months 1-2 2-3 More than  |Total
months -1 year Years years 3 years
() Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 312.12 36.94 14.18 0.67 - 383.91
Total 212 36.94 14.18 0.67 - 363.91

Trade receivable from related party

As at 31 March 2022

As af 31 March 2021

Bank of Baroda
Subsidiary of Bank of Baroda

185,26

326.14

0.13

0.26

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of D to 90 days.
Trade receivable includes majority receivables from holding company (i.e. Bank of Baroda) and the Company do not perceive any

credit risk-on that

Mo trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either sevetally or jointly with any other person,
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

(Figure'in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Loans and advances

As at

Loans As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

At Amortised Cost
A}
LOAN AND ADVANCE
To be realised within twelve months after reporting 12,913.09 7,901.15
date
To be realised after twelve months after reporting 1,370.16 873.70
date
‘| Total (A) -Gross 14,233.24 B,774.85

Less:Impairment less allowance (1,828.74) (1,344.55)
Total (A) - Net 12,454.50 7,430.30
B)
{i) Secured by lien on Fixed Deposits 173.44 247.96
(ii) Unsecured . 14,108.80 8,526.89
Total (B) -Gross 14,283.24 8,774.85
Less:impairment [oss allowance {1,828.74) (1,344.55)
Total {A) - Net 12,454.50 7,430,30
C) (i) Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - -
{ii) Cthers 14,283.24 B,774.85
Total C} (i) -Gross 14,283.24 8,774.85
Less:Impairment ioss allowance {1,828.74} {1,344.55)
Total C) {i) - Net 12,454.50 7,430.30
Cj (ii} Loans outside India
Total C) (i) -Gross - -
Less:Impairment loss allowance - -
Total C) (i) - Net - R
Total C) (i) +C) (ii) 12,454.50 7,430.30
D}
standard Advances 13,204.40 8,121.31
Less: Impairment loss allowance {918.20) {691.01)
Total 12,286.20 7,430.30
Sub- standard Advances 1,078.84 653.53
Less; impairment loss allowance (910.54) {653.53)
Total 168.30 {0.00)
Total (D) Gross 14,283.24 B,774.84
Less: impairment loss allowance {1,828.74) (1,344.54)
Total (D) Net 12,454.50 7,430.30

Following are the loans and advances given to directors, KMPs in the normal course of credit card operations.

31.03.2022

31.03.2021

Type of Borrower

Amount of loan ar
advance in the
pature of loan

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the

Amount of toan or
advance in the
nature of loan

Percentage o the
fotal Loans and
Advances in the

outstanding nature of loans outstanding nature of loans
Promoters - - - -
Directors 0.09 0.00 £.06 .00
KMPs - 0.08 0.00 0.26 6.00
Relaled Parties 0.50 0.0C 6.12 0.00
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BoB Financial Solution i.td

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in miliions, unless otherwise stated)

Note B: Investments

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2021

At Amortised cost
Investment
Total Gross {A)

(i) Investment ouside India
(i) Investment in India

Total B- Total (A) to tally with (8}

Less:Allowance for Impairment lass (C) -

Total Net (D)

During the yeaf ending 31st March, 2022 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutua! funds, the

details of which are as follows.

Fund Name Units Purchased Sales amount
amount

Baroda liguid fund 98,65,425.3920 11,449.80 11,454.73

Aditya.Birla Sun Life overnight fund 14,24,461.1820 919.85 920.36

Total 1,12,93,886.5740 12,369.75 12,375.09

During the year ending 31st March, 2021 the Company has purchased and sold units of Mutuat funds, the

- details of which are as follows,

Fund Name Units Purchased Sales amount
amount

Baroda overnight ptant 55,66,009.5940 5,949.70 5,951.89

Baroda liquid fund 6,46,939.1770 1,488.93 1,502.21

Total 62,12,948.7710 T7,449.63 7.454.10
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Nates to financial statements for the year ended 31sf Mar 2022

(Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 9: Other financial assets

B

Pariiculars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
To ke realised within twelve months after reporting
date: '
Unsecured considered good
Advance to employees 1,32 1.46
Advance Others 0.29 0.18
Advance towards Gratuity fund 0.08 0.13
Unrecoverad Merchant Payment 33.37 2411
Recoverable towards Setflement Agency 82.00 79.12
Recoverable from Oil Marketing Company 317 4.91
Receivable from Government - 10.58
Insurance receivable 0.02 0.02
Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit 0.00 -
Chargeback recoverable 5.94 7.60
Less: Impairment allowance (0.18)] {1.13}
To be realised after twelve months after reporting
date: ’
Unsecured considered good
Security deposits 12.97 12.66
Tofal 150.60 13963
Note 10: Deferred Tax Assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Deferred tax assels 494,14 441.86
Total 494.14 44136
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and charges recorded in the income tax expenses for the year
ended 31st March 2022.
opening balance Recagnised in Recognised in Closing
P profit and loss ather bhalance as on
Deferred tax assets (liabilities} as on .
{expense)f comprehensive J1st March
Mst March 2021 h
Income income 2022
Froperty plant and equipment 86.22 {10.33) 75.90
Provision for expenses 31.04 13.27 {1.02) 43.29
ECL provision 368.17 66.43 434.60
Deferred revenue 18.22 {3.34) 14.88
Amartisation of Card acquisition cost {63.28) {13.82) (77.20)
Processing fees 1.74 113 2.87
Debt issue expenses {0.26} 0.06 {0.20)
Totzl 441,86 53.30 {1.02) 49414

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and charges recorded in the income tax expenses for the year

endead 31st March 2021.

opening balance Recognised in Recognised in Closing
Deferred tax assets {liabilities) as an profit and loss other . balance as on

st March 2020 {expense)f cemprehensive Jst March

’ Income . ‘income 2021

Properly plant and equipment 76.14 i6.09 - 85.22
Provision for expenses 22,15 9,48 {0.57) 31.04
ECL provision 182.84 185.33 - 36817
Deferred revenue 7.03 11,18 - 18.22
Amortisation of Card acquisition cost {44.29) {18.99) - {63.28)
Processing fees 0.55 1.18 - 1.74
Debt issue expenses - (0.28) - (0.28)
Total 238.43 204.00 {0.57) 441.86
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Netes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated}

Note 12: Right-of-use assets

Particulars Right-of-use
Building
Gross block
Al April 01, 2020 105.35
Addilions 93,51
Disposals {110,18)
At March 31, 2021 BB.68
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 B8.68
Depreciation and impairment:
At April 01, 2020 39.90
Deprecialion charge for the year 28.47
Disposals {£0.98)
Al March 31, 2021 7.39
Depreciation charge faor the year 17.74
Disposals -
At Mareh 31, 2022 2513
Net bool value:
At March 31, 2021 81.29
At March 31, 2022 63.55
Note 13: Intangible assets under development
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Capital work in progress 0.63 19.91
Total 0.63 19.91

-(a} For Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development as on 31st March Amount in CWIP far a period of
2022 Less than 1 year |1-2 years 2-3 More than 3 Total
years years
Projects in progress 0.63 - - - 0.63
Projecls femporarily suspended - - - - -
Infangible assets under development as on 31st March Amount in CWIP for a period of
2021 Less than 1 year |[1-2 years 2-3 More than 3 Total
years years
Projects in progress 19.91 - - - 19.91
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
{b) For Intangible assets under development, whose comgpletion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its eriginal plan.
Intangible assets under development as on 31st March 2022 To be completed in
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Project 1 - - - -
Project 2 - - - -
Intangibie assets under development as on 3st March 2621 To be completed in
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Project 1 - - - - -
Praoject 2 - - - -
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Motes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless othcrwise stated)

Note 14: Other intangible assets

31 March 2022

Particulars Computer
Software
Gross block
Deemed cost as at April 01, 2020 13.61
" |Additions 24.22
Dizposals {3.71)
At March 31, 2021 412
Additions 157.82
Disposals -
Al March 31, 2022 19174
Accumulative amortisation and impairment:
At April 01, 2020 295
Amuortisation for the year 2.86
Disposals (1.05)
At March 31, 2021 476
Amortisation for the year 26.50
Disposals -
At March 31, 2022 31.65
Net book value:
At March 31, 2021 29.37
At March 31, 2022 160.09
Note 15: Other non-financial assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2021

To be realised within twelve months after reporting date:

Unsecured considered good

Goads & service lax credit {input) receivable 207.72 148.59
Unamorlised card acquisilion cost {contract asset) 90.45 £8.62
Advance to Vender 527 2.88
Deferred lzase expenses 2.00 2,26
Prepaid expenses 19.66 13.93
To be realised after twelve months after reporting date:

Unsecured consldered good

Unamorlised card acquisilion cost (contracl assef) 216.27 158.68
Advance tax {net of Provisions for laxation and tax deducted 319.68 291.71
at source}

Prepaid expenses 6.68 1.73
Total 867.73 678.40
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BoB Financial Sclution Lid _
tlotes to financial statements for the year ended 3ist Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in milllions, unless otherwise staled)_

Note 16: Payables

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 31 March

) 2022 2021
Payable within twelve months after reporting date:
Trade payables
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15.45 1.69
{ii} total outstj;lnding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 13907 70.54
small enterprises
Total 154.52

As al 31si March 2022

72.23

Particulars Cutstanding for following perieds from due date of payment
Less than1 |1-2 23 More than 3 |Total
. . year Years . years years
(I} Undispuled duss MSME 15.45 - - - 15.45
{ify Undisputed dues- Others 132,57 3.70 2.80 - 139.07
Total 148.02 3.70 280 - 154,52

As at 31st March 2021

Particulars Outstanding for following periods frorn due date of payment
Lessthan1 {1-2 2-3 Mare than 3 {Total
year Years years years
() Undisputed dues MSME 1.69 - - - 1.69
(i) Undisputed dues- Others G7.60 2.94 - - 70.54
Total 69.29 2.94 - - 72.23
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
1) Principal amount remaining unpaid 15.45 169
" iy Interest due thereon remaining unpaid Nil il
it} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enlerprises Developmenl Act, 2008, along with the amount of . .
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day Nil Nl
iv) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
{which have been pald bul beyond the appointed day during the period} but . )
without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Nil Nit
Enterprises Act, 2006
v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nt
vi} Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small Nil Nil

enterprises

The above information has been compiled in respect of parlies {o the extent to which they could be identified as Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises ,

on the basis of infarmaticn available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd :
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3ist Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupeses in millions, unless otherwise staled)

Note 17: Debt securities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2022 2021

At Amortised Cost
Unsecured:
- To be settled within twelve months after reporting date:
Liability component of compound financial instruments:

Cormmercial paper 495.82 3,565.17
- To be settled after twelve months after reporting date:
Liabitity component of compound financial instruments:

Debentures 459.20 489.11
Total (A) 995,02 4,064.28
Debt secutities in India 895.02 4,064.28
Debt securities outside India - -
Total (B} to tally with (A} 995.02 4,064.28
Particulars of Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
Particulars As at As at

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
Unsecured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
7.85 % Unsecured Tier Il NCD of Rs.10,00,000 each INE027208011 500.00 500.00
{Redeemable at par in March'2031} '
Total 500.00 500.00
l.ess; Unamottized Expense 0.80 0.89
Total 49920 499.11
Particulars of Commercial paper
Particulars Rate of Date of As at As at
interest maturity 31 March 31 March
2022 2021

Commercial Papers
Commercial Paper - INEG27214100 3.80 28-05-2021 - 1,250.00
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214118 3.78 29-06-2021 - 1,250.00
Commercial Paper - INEG27214050 6.15 02-07-2021 - 1,100.00
Commercial Paper - INEQ27214209 4.40 10-06-2022 500.00 -
Total 500.00 3,600.00
Less: Unamortized discount 4.18 34.83
Tatal 495,82 356517
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_ BoB Financial Selution Ltd
Motes to financlal statements for the year ended 3ist Mar 2022
(Figure in Rupees in milfions, unless otherwisa slated)

Note 18: Borrowings other than debt sacurities & Leased liabilities

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Af Amortised Cost

Unsecured

- To be setiled within twelve months after repoding date:

(a) Finance lease obligations 17.09 14.68

{b)Loan repayable on demand
Working capitat laan

(iffrom banks 6,600.00 1,600.00
{fi) from banks (Refated Party} - 903,45
- To be setlled after twelve months after reporling date:
{a) Finance lease obligations 49.43 66.52
Secured

- To be setiled within twelve months after reporling date:
{a)Loans from related parties:

Working capita loan* ' 3,450.05 e
10,116.57 2,584.65
Bormrowings in India 10,116.57 2,584.65
Total {B) to tally with (A) 10116.57 |  2,584.65

The Company has been regular with repaymenl of inleres! and principat en all ils borrowings and there Is no overdue on the reperting date.

* Firset paripasu charge by way of hypothecation on bommower's credit card standard receivable {present and future) and other current assets with an Asset cover
of 1.1 times,

*FD of Re. 0.12 mn s lien marked against the overdrafi.

Terms of repaymaent:
Term loans from Banks :

Lender Name Socured / Tenure (months) As at As at
Unsecured 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
HOFC Bank . { Unsecured 6 months 2,500,00
HDFC Bank Unsecured 9 months 500,00 -
HDFC Bank Unsecured 12 moenths 1,000.00 1,000.00
Hong Kong & shanghai Banking Corporation Unsecured 12 months 2,600.00 600.00
Bank of Baroda Secured 3 months 2,500.00 -
Bank of Batoda . Secured 12 menlhs 950.05 803.45
Total Borrowings other than debt securities, above 10,050.55 2,503.45

Net Debt Reconciliation for the year ended 31st March 2022

Non Cash changes

Particulars Cpening balance Cash flow interest / Closing balance
. others
amortisation
Commercial paper 3,565.17 (3,100.00) 30.85 - 485.82
Debenture 499,11 0.0 - 489.20
working capital loan 2,503.45 7.546.59 - - 10,050.05
leased liabililies 81.20 - 517 {19.85} 66.52
Total 6,648.83 4,446.59 35.91 {19.85) 11,111.58

Net Debt Reconciliation for the year ended 31ist March 2021

Men Cash changes

Particulars Cpening bhal Cash flow interest f Closing balance

amortisation others
Commercial paper - 3,565.17 - - 3.565.17
Debeniure - 499.11 | - - - 48911
working capital loan 2,735.57 {232.11) - - 2,503.45
leased liabilities 67.57 - 7.34 5.8¢ 81.20
Totat 2,803.53 3.832.17 7.4 5.82 6,648.93
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BoE Financial Solution Ltd .
Notes to financial statements.for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 19: Other financial liabitities

Particulars

As at
3 March 2022

As at
3 March 2021

Liabilitles to be setftled within twelve months after reporting date

Advance from customers 165.71 104.47
Merchant payment on hald 21.52 20.79
Other Payable 12.52 12.15
Charge back hold 8.51 11.07
Payable to employees 412 0.28
Credit Batance In Cancellad Cards 2.64 1.62
Onus Chargeback 2.61 8.72
Insurance Claim Payable - 0.28
Liahilities to be settled after twelve months after reporting date

Refundable Deposit 8.01 £.30
Marchant payment an hold 7.17 6.93
Total 230.81 170.58
Note 20: Provisions

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for employee benefits
Liabilities o he seftled within twelve months after reporting date

Staff incentive 24,75 0.44
Provision for compensated absences 378 -
Liabilities to be settled after twelve months after reporting date
Provision for compensated absences 748 17.67
Others
LUiabilities to be setiled within twelve months after reporting date
Provisien For Expenses 435.61 336.92
Provision for Reward Peinl Expenses 145.04 81.33
Provision for CSR activities - 1.91
Total 666,67 438.27
Note 21: Dther Mon-financial liabilities

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Liabilities to be settied within twelve months after reporting date
Statutory dues payable

Unearned Income

Confract liability {deferment of annual fees)

Total

153.11 166.54
- 1.86
53.11 82.57
212,22 230.97
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

_ Note 22: Equity Share Capital

The reconciliation of equity shares cutstanding at the héginning and at the end of the period

Authorised Share capital

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

40,00,00,000 (P.Y. 40,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/~ Each 4,000.00 4,000,060
4,000.00 4,00£.00
Issued and fully paid up
27.50,00,000 (P.Y.17,50,00,000) Equily Shares of Rs 10/~ each fully paid up 2,750.00 1,750.60
Total 2,750.00 1,750.00
Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
: : As at 31 March 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Number of Rs. In million Number of Rs.In
shares shares million
At the beginning of the reporting year 17,50,00,000 1,750.00 | 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Issued during the year 10,00,00,000 1,000.00 - -
At the close of the reporting year 27,50,00,000 2,750.00 | 17,50,00,000 1,750.00
Details of shareholders hofding of Promotors
31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2021
Promoters name Number in % helding in % holding Number in % holding in | % holding
million the equity changed mitlicn the equity changed
: share during the year ’ share during the
Bank of Baroda 275 100.00% Nil 175 100.00%+ Nil
Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend, if any, is proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject ta the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meafing. In the event
of liquidation of Company, the holders of equity shares will be enlitled fo receive remaining assels of he Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity Shares
Particulars 31 Mar 2022 31 March 2021
Number in % holding in Numberin | % holding In the
million the class million class
Bank of Baroda 275 100.00% 175 100.00%

The Bank holds 27,49,89,300 shares in ils own name and the balance shares through its -7- nominee sharehalders holding 100 shares each,

Mote 23: Other Equity

Particutars As at As at
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 352,17 35217
Refained Earning (292.69) (191.66}
Total 59.48 160.51
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Statutory Retalned Total Statutory Retained Total
Reserves Earnings Reserves Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 352,17 {191.686) 160.51 352.47 {87.04) 25514
Tolal Comprehensive Income for the year - 326 3.26 - 1.39 1.38
Transfer to retained eamings - {104.29) (104,29} - {86.01) {96.01)
Balance at the end of the year 35217 {292.69) 59.48 35217 {194.66) 160.51

Nature and purpose-of Reserves
Statutory reserve

The Company created a reserve pursuani i section 45 IC the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring amount not less than twenly per cent of its net
profit every year as disclosed in the Slatement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend, However due te loss in the current year, the Company have not
appropriate towards the statutory reserve. {previous year: Nif}
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- BoB Financial Solution |_td

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

(Figure in Rupees in mitlions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24: Interest income

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

On financial assets measured at amoHised cost
Interest on Loans

Interest on credit card loans 1,853.58 1,094.20
Other interest 0.51 0.42
Total 1,854.09 1,094.62

Note 25; income from fees and services

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Income from Fees _ 1,694.56 989.41
[ncome from Merchant Operations 1,268.75 1,237.36
income from Debit Card Operations - 64.81
Total 2,963.31 2,291.58

Note 26: Qther income

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

[ncome from mutual fund 5.34 4.47
Interest on Fixed Deposit 0.00 -
Liability no longer required written back 10.71 108.82
Reversal of Provision for loss due to fraud 0.79 2.33
Profit on derecognition of lease assets - 5.56
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.06 Q.77
Miscellaneous income 0.39 0.15
Bad Debfs Recovered 21.86 11.71
Balance written back 1.37 -

Total 40.52 133.82

Note 27: Finance Cost

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

On Financial liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings:

Interest on borrowings from banks: 279.87 180.50
Interest on lease liability 517 7.34
Interest on Commercial Paper and Bonds 118.00 89.55
{nterest on Debentures 38.15 2.41
Total 441.19 279.80
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Bobd Financial Sdlution Lid

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

" (Figure in Rupees in millions, uniess otherwise statéd) :

Note 28: lmpairment.on ﬁlnaﬁcial instruments

Particulars

March 31,2022

- March 31, 2021

On Financial instruments measured at Amortised Cost

(i) Loans 484.19 672.31
{ii) Others receivable (0.87) (10.51)
{iify Bad debts written off 54562 174.86
(iv) Balance written off - 16.17
Total 1,028.84 852.83

Note 29: Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2022

. March 31, 2021

Salaries and wages 516.48 537.32
Contribution {o provident and other funds 38.07 39,39
Staff welfare expenses 10.28 8.28
Tofal 564.83 585.00

Note 30: Operating and Other expenses

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interchange fees 463.53 361.02
Business Prometion expenses 452.45 239.48
Bonus Point expenses 323.91 139.76
Scheme charges 326.59 266.97
Recovery Agent Charges 29369 91.73
Wages & Salaries fo Substaff -Contractor 268.58 379.92
Software/ L.T. Expenses 184.97 57.50
ERC Processing Charges 99.45 124.42
Royality paid to BOB, 75.27 -
Communication Expenses 77.98 48.53
Legal and Professional 23.90 19.87
Card Verification Charges 58.14 37.54
“|Card issuance cost 37.05 23.79
Postage & Courier 29.82 20.76
Bank Charges 24.19 26.07
Rent 19.60 35.18
Other Administrative Expenses 29.67 1214
Operating cost towards one card 13.97 -
Data Processing Charges 11.50 5.71
Repairs & Maintehance 10.40 597
Insurance Expenses 10.61 10.91
Travelling Expenses 9.76 10.06
Printing & Stationery 9.14 7.39
GPRS Conneclivity Charges (POS) 9.186 16.58
Electricity Expenses 5.23 4,58
Consumption of Credit Card Plastic 5.24 3.73
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 2.61 0.59
Share Issue Expenses - 10.87
Fixed Assel Written Off 0.77 2.74
Advertisement Expenses 072 0.27
Auditor remuneration;
-~ as auditor 0.78 079
- tax audit fees 0.18 0.18
- for cerlification 0.76 0.40
Director's sitling fees 0.52 0.39
Consumption of Dehit Card Plastic - 18.76
Debit card Operation expenses - 16.05
Total 287012 2,000.63
g/ 5 B9 , 6]



BoB Financiat Solution Ltd .
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022 -
(Figure {n Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31: Income tax

The companents of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31, 2021 are:

Profit or loss section

Mareh 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Current income tax:

Income {ax - Current year aB.07 74,68
Deferrad lax- Current year {53.37) {204.00)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 44.70 {129.32)

Other Comprehensive [ncome section

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Deferred 1ax expense recognised in Other comprehensive income

{1.09)

{(0.57)

Incame tax expense reported in the Other Comprehensive section

(1.09)

{0.57)

Reéanciliaﬁon of tax expense and the'accouﬁting profit

March 31; 2022

March 31, 2021

Profit/(loss) before tax from a continuing operations {59.59} {225.34)
Income tax rate as on Mar 31, 2022 2517% 29.12%
Income tax expenses {15.00} {65.61)
Tax effect of:

COthers adjusiments 113.07 14028
deferred lax on timing difference {53.37) {204.00)
Income tax expense recegnised in the statement of profit and loss 44.70 {129.32)

* During the financial year, Company have opled for taxation regime under section 115BAA under Income tax.

Note 32: Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year afiributable to equity holders of Company by

the weightad average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit altribufable to equity holders of Company (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares and inlerest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of {ax} by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the

conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Particulars

‘March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Following reflects 1he profit and share data used in EPS compufations:
Basicf Dituted

Weighted average number of equily shares for computation of Basic EPS 25,25,34,247 17,50,00,000
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS {104.29) {96.01)
Basic earmning per share {In Rs.) {0.41} {0.55)
Diluted

Weighied average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 25,25,34,247 17,50,00,000
et profit for caleulation of Diluted EPS {104.29) {96.01)
Dituted earning per share {in Bs.} {0.41) {0.55}
Nominal | Face Value of equity shares {In Rs.} 10.00 10.00
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Note 33: Retirement benefit plan

i} Defined contribution pfan ) o ) . . !
The:Company makes Contribution which ars defined contiibullons plans, for qualifying employeas. Under, the schemes, the
campany fs requited to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll cosls to fund the benefits, Tha contribulions payable to
thase plans by the Company are al ratas specified in lhe rules of scheme.

Churing the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Slatement of profit and loss:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Employers' Contribution to Employee's Pravident Fund’ 27.86 29.81
Employee State [nsurance Ceorporations (ESIC) 0.30 .70
Contribution to National Pension Scheme 283 .27
Labour Weifare Fund 0.02 0.02
Total 30.9¢ 32,80

1 provident fund is a defined contrbution plan. The cantribution towards provident fund has been deposiled with Regicnal

Providant Fund Commissioner and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss,

i} Defined benefit plan

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded), The company's defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan
for employees, which requires contributions to be made 1o a separately administerad fund, The gratuity plan is govemed by
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has compleled five years of service. (s entitled to specific
benefit, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's tength of service and (ast drawn salary,

Threugh its defined benelt plans the Company is exposed to a number of dsks, the most significant of which are detailed

bratow:

a) Change in bond ylelds -
A decrease in govermnment bond yields will increase plan liabifities.

b inftalion risk -

The present value of some of the dofined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference 1o the future salaries of plan

parlicipants, As such, an increase in the salary of the plan parlicipants will increase the plan’s liability.

¢} Life expectancy -

The present value of defined benefif plan obligation fs calcufated by reference fo the best estimate of the mortality of plan
paticipanls, bolk during and after the employment. An incregss in the life expeclancy of the plan participants will increase lhe

plan’s Gabhity.

The following tables summarse the components of not benofit expense recognised in the stalerment of profit or loss end the

funded slatus and amounts racognised in Ihe balance sheet for (ha respective plans:

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

Particutars As al As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Change in benefit obllgations
Present value of benefit obligation al the beginning of the vear 44,32 35,93
Interest on defined banafit obligation 2,49 241
Cumant Sarvice cost .41 6.79
Liability Transferred InfAcquisition - -
{Benefit Paid From the Fund) (0.42} -
Acluarial (Galns) on Obligations - Due to Change in Demographic - -
Assumplions
Acluarial (Gains} on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial {1.06) 0.33
Assurnpllons
Actuarial Losses an Obligations - Due to Experience (3.03} {1.84)
Liablitty at the end of the year 49.70 44.32
Tabte Showing Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars As at As at
Maech 31, 2022 | March 34, za21
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 44,45 36,73
Interest income 2.72 2.30
Contributions by lhe Employer 278 4.96
Benefit Paid Frorm the Fund {042} -
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest lncome 0.26 .45
Fair Vatue of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 49.79 44.45
Amount recognizad in the Batance Sheet
Particuiars Ag at As at
: WMarch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present value of unfunded defined benafit obiigation 49.70 44.32
Amount not recognized due to assct limit (49.79) {44.45)
Net defined beaefit liabillty / (asset) recognized in balance sheet {0.08) .13
Current {0.08} {0.13)
Nen-currend - -
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Expenses recognlied in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particufars As at As al
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Curent service cost 7.41 6.78

interest on net defined benafit liability / (asset) {0.23} [0.20)

Totaf expense chatged to profit and loss account 7.18 6.59

Expenses recognized In the Other comprehensive income {OCH)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Opening amount recagnized in OC| autside profil and loss account
Remeasurements during lhe period due to

Changes in financial assumptions (1.08) 0.33

Changes in demographic assumptions - - -
Retum on plan assets excluding amournds includad in interest income (1.26) (0,45}

Exparience adjustments {3.03) (1.64)
Closing amount recognized in OCI outside profit and luss account (4.35) {1.98)

The acluarial assumplions used {o delerming benefit obligations as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Discount Rate 6.50% p.a. 6.05% p.a,
Expected retum on plan assels 6.50% p.a. 6.05% p.a.
Retirement Age {years); B0 years 60 years
[Mortality 1ables 2012-14 2012-14
wilhdrawal rates per annum
25 & below 18% 18%
2510 35 18% 18%
LR LE Y 18% 18%
451055 18% 18%
55 and above 18% 18%
Salary escalation rate £.00% p.a for 8.00% p.a for
next1years & | nexl{years &
6,00% p.a 6,00% p.a
fhereafter thereafler
Balance sheet reconciliation
Partlcufars Az at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Qpenlng net liability 0.13) 0.20
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 7.18 6.59
Expanses recognized in OCI (4.35} {1.56)
Employer's Contribution (2.78) {4.96)
Met llability recognfzed in the Balance Sheet (0.08} {0.13)

Cash Flow Projection

Expected cash flow profile of tha benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of

the employees as at the valuation date

Pacticulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Expecled bonefils for year 1 7.592 6.44
Expeded benefils (or year 2 7.30 5095
Expecled henefils for year 3 7.28 567
Expected benefils for year 4 6.76 5.89
Expecled benefils for year 5 6.25 5.46
Expecled benellls for year 6 to 10 years cash flow 20.23 18.44
Sensitivity analysis
Particilars As at As at
March 21, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Frojecied benefit obligation on current assumptions
Delta effect of +0.5% change In rate of discounting 48,68 43,24 |
Della effect of -0.5% change in rate of discounting 50.88 45,45
Diella effect of +0.5% change in rate of salary increase 50.78 45.36
Della effecl of -0,5% changs in rate of salary increase 48,65 43.27
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(Figure in Rupees in millions, uniess othenwise staled)

Note 34: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and fiakilities analysed according to when they are expacted to be racoverad or settled.

IM-Mar-21

Particulars 31-Mar-22
Withinn 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
months months months months
Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 695.97 - 59597 158.84 - 158.84
Banlk Balance other than above 0.12 - 0.12 - - -
Trade Receivables 202,67 3577 238.44 309.32 54.59 363.94
Loans 12,1282 441581 12,454.50| 722575 204,55 7.430.30
Other financial assels 137.03 12.97 150.00 126.98 12.65 139.63
Non-financial Assets
Inventory - 2964 29,64 - 1.00 1.00
Deferred tax assets {net} - 494 14 494 14 - 441.86 441.86
Property, plant and equipmenl - 30.48 30.48 - 127.00 127.00
Right-of-use assets 17.73 4582 63.65 17.73 63.56 81.29
Intangible assets under development 0.63 - 0.63 - 19.91 12.81
Other intangible assets - 160.08 160.069 - 29.37 29.37
Cther non financial assets 325.10 542.64 867.73 226.27 452,12 678.40
Total assets 13,392.16 1,793.12 15,185.29 8,064.89 1,406.60 9,471.49
Liabitifies
Financial Liabllities
Payables
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro 15.45 - 15.45 1.69 - 1.69
enterprises and small enterprises
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other 139.07 - 139.07 70.54 - 70.54
than micre enterpises and small enterprises
Debt Securities 495.82 499.20 995,02 3,565.17 498,11 4.064.28
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 10,067.13 4943 10,116.57 ] 1,614.68 869.97 2,584.65
Other Finangial liabilitics 217.63 13.18 230.81 157.35 13.23 170.58
Non-financial Liabilities
Provisions 6549.18 7.49 666.67 420.60 17.67 438.27
Other non-financial liabilities 212.22 - 212.22 230.97 - 230,97
Tota! Liakilities 11,806.51 569.30 12,375.80 6,061.00 1,499.98 7,560.98
[Net | 1,585.65| 1,223.83]  2,800.48 | 2,003.90| 93.38] 1,910.51
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Note 35: Revenue from Contract with. Customer

The Company derives revenue from a variety of service contract with custerers which are gavemed by IND AS 115 such
as Interchange income, annual fees, business development incentives and other fees elc. Below table shows revenue

from contract with custamer.

Revenue from services fMarch 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Incame from fees and services 2,963.31 2,291.58
Income from Cansultancy 111.08 114.48
Business develapment incentives 27.53 28.19
Total 3,101.92 2,434.25

Disaggregation of Revenue:

The Company is engaged in the business of issuing cradit cards to consumers in India. [t alse provides support to Bank of
Baroda by camying ouf its merchanl acquiring cperafions and manpower/consultancy services. The segment wise

bifurcalion is provided in note no 38,

Raceivable from contract with custamers and contract balance

Parliculars March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021
Trade receivables 238.44 363.91
Total 238.44 363.91
To be realised within twefve months after repotting dale: 202.67 309.32
To be realised after twelve months after reporiing date: 3577 54.58
Trade receivables lncfude unbilled revenue 100.72 79,69

Coatract Cost

Cost of acquiring a customer is the incremental cost of obitalaing the contract wilh customer, which is recognised in the

profit and loss statement over the behavioural life of the customer i.e. 5 years,

Particulars March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021

Opening Balance 217.30 152.09
Capitalised during the year 162.50 114.10
Amorlised durng the year 73.08 48.88
Closing balance 306.72 247,30
Toe be reallsed within iwclve months after reporting dafe: 90.45 58.62
Te be realised after tweive months afler reporting date: 218.27 158.68

The unamorlised contract cost are disclased in note:15 to financial statements.

Contract liabilities

The company sell credit card fo card holders, income eamed from customer as card fees Is recognised as revenue over

ihe period of 12 months.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Balance 62,57 24.16
Capitalised during the year 119.05 49.68
Amorlised during the year 122.51 3797
Closing balance 59.11 €2.57
To be realised within twelve months afler reporling date: 59.11 62.57
To be realised after twelve months afler reporing date: N Nil

The Contraci Liabifilies are disclosed in note:19 to financial statements.

Mote 36: Contingent liabilities, commitments

In lhe ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by varicus paries. The Company assesses
such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongeing basis, with the assistance of external legal
counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a llabilily for any claims where a potential loss is probable and
capable of being esfimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if matedal. For potential fosses that are
considered possible, bul not probabte, the Company grovides disclosure in the financial statements but does nol record a
fiability in its accounis unless the loss becomes probable, The Company believes thal the outcome of these proceedings
will not have a materdally adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of!
Particutars

Income tax matters - appeals by Company

Claim filed against the Company in conisumer coutl
Tetal

March 3%, 2021 |
Nil
3.63
3.63

March 31, 2022
it

445
4,46
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Note 37: Related party disclasures
Relationship

Halding Company

Subsidtary compary

Cthaer Group Campanles

Key Management Personnet

Related Party transactions durlng fhe year: .

Name of the party

Bank of Baroda

ND L

I} Subsidiaries of holding company

The Nainital Bank Limitad

Bank of Baroda {iKenya) Limited

Banit of Barada (Uganda} Umiied
Bank of Barada (Suyanal Ine

Bank of Bareda (UK) Limited

Bank of Baroda (Tanzanla) Limited
Bank of Bareda (Trinidad & Tobago] Lid,
Bank of Baroda (New Zealand) 1id.
Bani of Bareda (Botswana) Limited
BOB Capltal Markets Limlied

Baroda Glebal Shared Services Lid
Baroda Aszet Managamant india Umiled
Baroda Trustas India Private Limited
Daroda Sun Technologles Lid

BOE (U L.

I Assoriatos company of halding company
Baroda Uttar Pradesh Gramin Bank
Baroda Ralasihan Kshetiya Gramin Bank
Barada Gujaral Gramin Bank

Indo- Zambia Bank Lid (Lusaka)

Indla Intermational Bank Malaysia Berad
iy Jolnl venlure of holding company-

Indla First L¥e Insuranca Company Hmllad
India tnfra debi Limlted

Name Deslgnation

Shet Sanily Chadha {Chalrman}

Shed Vikraruaditya S Khichl {Nominee Director

Shei Purshotam {Non-execullva Directar)

Ms. Archana Pandey {hon-gréculive Direclor{uple 30ih October 2021)
Shri Adul Malik, : {Indepandent Diraclori{upto 30th Oclaber 2021)

Ms. Kadagatoor Venlateshmurthy Sheet {Non-axeculive Dlreclori{wilh efect from £15¢ Decembier

2021)

Shii Sanjay a0 {Additional Dicectordndependant) {with eflect from 17¢h
January 2023)

Shri Sharad Serin {independent Clraclor)

Shi Shallendra Singh {Manapgling Dlrector & CECY

Ms.Pooia Kamani {Chief Financtal Offlcer}

Ms. Deepashd Comelivs [Company Secretary)

Holdlng Company Assaciates f Enterprises owned or Key Management Fersonnel
slgnificantly Influenced by Key
Paricutars Management Personnel
As at Asal As al As at As at As at
March 21,2022 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 March 39, 2022 March 31, 2021
Transactions o
1. MDR Subvenlion a7 61.74 - - -
2. Revenus From Debit Card Cparafions - £5.80 - .31 -
3, Sarvice Charges 474,72 411.52 - - -
4. Income from Consuliancy service 11108 114.49 . - -
5. POS Charges 1442 68.06 - - -
6. Income from mulual fund investments - - 4.94 4,47 -
7. DST Expensas pald ! {recovemd) {028y - - -
8. Rent 172 1564 . - -
4. Interast on Short term bomowings 23.70 1186 - B -
10, Bark Charges 240 2526 - - -
11, Insurance Expenses - - 1,35 0.27 -
12. Card [ssuance cosl - - E8.61 5234 - -
13. Director's - Employee Banefit Expenses - - - - 296 5,35
14, Dlrector’s - sitling fees - - - - 052 0,32
15. Key Managenal Parsans - Employes Benaiit - - - - 8,53 i
Expenses
16, Viza Oiher Charges 87,04 00.5¢ - - - -
17, Graluity premium pald - - 278 4.96 - -
18. Revally for Loge 0.50 0,50 - - - -
18. Revality paid lo BOB. 75.27 - - - - -
20. interes| on Fixed Dagosit 000 - - - - -
21. Dala validation charges [+R ] - - - - -
B. Balance Receivabies al year end
1. Trade Recelvabies 185.26 326,44 0.43 0.26 - -
2. Loan and advance lo customer - - 0.50 012 016 033
A Advance lo vandor - - {0.82) 0.02 - -
4, Cash and cash equivalanis 683,11 123.09 - - - -
5, Gralully (1.ife Insusance Fund) - - 4879 44,45 - -
6. Intorest an FOR receivable 0.00 - - - - -
C, Balapce Payables at year end
1, Borrawinns {other than debl seturitins) 3,460.05 903.45 - - - -
2, Trada Pavables - - 15,32 13,90 - -
3, Provislons 91.72 262 - 1257 - -
4. Other financiat lakiilies 12.52 12,98 - - - -
Note:

a) Ralatad parfies have been ldanifled on (ho basis of the declamtion recalved by the managemeanl and othar reconds avaitable,
4} Provislons for gratuity, compensated absonees and other lang term service banellls are made for the Compary a3 & whale and the amounts pertaining 1o the key
managerfal parsennel are nol specifically identilied and hance are not nchided above.
¢} The Cormpany anters into transactions, amangements and agreemenls invelving relaled partias in the ordinary course of business under the same commerclal and markel
teems, intarest and commissian rates that apply b nenelaied panies. ’ ’

o
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Mote 38: Capital

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy
requirements of the local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI} of India. The adequacy of the Company's capital is monitored
using, among other measures, the regulations issued by REL

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to #t according to changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of its activities. [n order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and
processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Particulars

Regulatory capital

Common Equity Tier{ {(CET1) capital 1,814.58 1,160.70
Other Tier 2 capitaf instruments 673.32 611.44
Total capital 2,487.90 1,762.14
Risk weighfed assets

iy CRAR (%) / CET1 capital ratio 17.86% 19.61%
ii} CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 13.03% 12.80%
iy CRAR - Tier il Capital (%) 4.83% 6.80%

Regulatory capital consists of CET 1 capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, retained eamings including current year profit
less accrued dividends . Certain adjustments are made to Ind AS—-based results and reserves, as prescribed by the Reserve Banic of India.
The other component of regulatory capital is other Tier 2 Capital Instruments.

Analytical Ratio

Ratio Mumerator Denominater Current Previous Period % Reasan for variance (if ahove
Pericd Variance 25%)
Capital to risk-welghled 2,487.890 13,928.65 17.86% 18.61% -8.21%
Tier | CRAR 1,814,658 13,825.66 13.03% 12.80% 1.74%
Tier i CRAR 673.32 13,929.66 4.83% 65.80% -28.96%|Due to increase in RWA.
LCR Ratio* NA NA NA WA NA

* As per R8! notification no RBI/2019-20/88/00R.NBFC(PD) CC.No. 102/03.10.001/2018-20 dtd 04th November 2019, calculation and
maintance of LCR (Liquidity Coverage Ratio) is not applicable for non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of less than ¥ 5,000 crore.
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Note 38 : Events after reporting date

Further to the 3rd wave of COVID hitliag the country in Dec21/Jan22, this did nct have any materal Impact on the economic situation of varlous customer segments. Our
collections efficiencies have improved to pre-pandemic levels and we do naot forzsee the impact of COVID in the coming months. Having said that, there are some states
having a rlse in COVID cases . Since this wave has not siill in buill in, s too eady to comment on its impact on life or livelihood, or our own capabilities 1o collecl from
dellnguent poptdation, wa de not foresee the naed to hold any incremental provisions ewing lo COVID. However the extent lo which the COVID induced pandemic in fulure will
continue loimpact e Company's results will depend on ongolng as well as future developmens in this regard,

Nate 40: Segment ceporting
The Management has reviewed and reconsidered the requiremenls of presenting segment information and accordingly identified Business segment as the Primary segment
for disclosure for the current year, The Company operations are in India and hence there Is no segment reporting by geographical segment. Segment Information has been
prepared in conformity with the Ind AS 108 on 'segment reporting’.

Business Segment Merchant Credit Card Debit Card Other Total
{acquiring) [issuing) ) :
FParticulars AL F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y. F.Y.
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2024.22 | 2020-21 | 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue 1,287.21 1,342.74 3,596.11 2,137.34 2.12 66.67 11110 11472 4,996.53 3,662.68
Result 207,63 377.35 {260.68) {631.99) 3.38 19,73 10,09 9.56 -59.80 -225.35
Unallocated Expense -
Operating Profit 207.63 377.35 (280.68) {631.99) 3.36 19.73 10,09 9,56 -55.60 -275,38
Interest Income + PPI ) ) . . e
Profit/{Loss) before 207.63 377.35 (280.68) {631.89) .36 18,73 10,08 9.56 -58.60 -225.35
tncome Taxes 44.69 (129.34)
Extra-ordinary - -
et Profit before OCt {104.28) {96.01)
adjustment
Cther Information )
Segment Assets 623.55 440.88 13,285,868 7,923.60 9,15 | 20025 §6.48 306.06 13,995.05 B,870.79
Unaillacated Assets 1,190.24 600,70
Total Assets 15,185.29 5,471.49
Segment Llabilities 134.53 208.64 1,112.34 65113 8.96 36,08 8.38 16,23 1,264.22 512.05
tInallocated Liatilities 13,921.07 B,559.44
Total Llabilities 15,185.29 5471.49
Capital Expenditure 36.75 8.54 2873 32,64 0,38 - 6548 42.56
Unaltocated -
DepreciationfAmartls 105.60 136.28 45.54 37 0.10 0.2 151.14 169.76
Unallocated -
Non cash expenses 6.44 80,66 1.00 117 211 - - 5.55 91.83
|Unallocaled -
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Note 41: Leases . , . L , .
The Cbmpany‘s lease asset class pﬁmarily consist of leases for office premises. Cenerally, the Company is restricted
frorn assigning and subleasing the leased assets. The Company applies the shorl-term lease recognition exemption to is
short-term leases {i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movermnents during the year:

Office premises March 31, 2022[ March 31, 2021
Opening nel carrying balance 81.28 65.44
Additions - 84.67
Deletion - (44.36)
Depreciation {(17.73) (28.47)
Clo$ing net carrying balance 63.55 : 84.28

Set out below are the carrying amounts of [ease liabilities {included under Other financial Bability) and the movements
during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2022; March 31, 2021
Cpening Balance 81.20 67.97
Additions . - 88.67
Deletions - (48.97}
Accretion of interest 517 7.34
Payments {19.85} {33.81)
Closing Balance 66.52 81.20

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liability
The table below provides details regarding the confractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 on
an undiscounted basis:

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Not later than one year 17.09 14.68

later than cne year not fater than five year 48,43 66.52

Later than five year - -

Total undiscounted lease llabllities 66.52 81.20

Amounts recagnized in the Statement of Profit and Loss March 31, 2622| March 31, 2021
Depreciation expense

Depreciation on right of use assefs 17.74 28.47
Other expenses

Shorl-term {ease rent expense 19.60 35.18
Finance cost

interest expense on lease liability 517 7.34
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Note 42: Fair value measuremenf

* The following table combines comparable information about :

- classes of financial instruments based on their financial pature and characteristics.
- carrying amount of financial instruments.

-The financial assets / liabilities are recorded at amortised cost
- All the financial assets and financial liabilities carrying value which is at amortised cost reflects fair value for these assets and liabilities.

Accounting classification and fair values.

As at March 31, 2022

Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars FVTPL A"L”D':t“d Total | Leveli|  Levelll Level Itl Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivafents - 695.87 695.87 - - - -
Bank balance other than above - 012 0.12 - - - -
Receivables - 238.44 238.44 - - - .
Loans - 12,454,650 | 12,454.50 - - - .
Investments - - - - - .
QOther financial assefs - 150.0G 150.00 - - - -
Total - 13,639.062 | 13,539.02 “ - - B
Financial liahilities
Trade Payables - 154,52 154.52 - - - -
1Debt securities - $95,02 895.02 - - - -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) - 10,1186.57 | 10,116.57 - - - -
Other financial liabllities - 230.81 230.81 - - - -
Total - 11,496.92 1 11,496.92 - - - B
As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair Value
Particulars FVTPL A“:L’:t“d Total | Levelt|  Levelll Level il Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 158.84 158.84 - - - -
Bank balance other than above - - - - - -
Trade receivables - 363.61 363.91 - - - .
Loans - 7.430.30 7,430.30 - - - -
fnvestments - - - - - - -
Other financial assets - 139.83 139.63 - - - -
Toftal . 8,092.68 8,092.68 - " - -
Financial [iahilities
Trade Payables - 72.23 72.23 - - - -
Debt securities - 4,064.28 4,064.28 - - - -
Bomowings (other than debl securities} - 2,584,685 2,584,685 - - - -
Cther financial liabifities - 170.58 170.58 - - - -
Total - 6,891.74 6,891.74 - - - -

uq}é|




Bo8 Financiai Selutien Ltd
Notes to Fnanclal statements for ihe year ended 315t Mar2022
_{Figure in Rupees in miliions, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 43 Risk Managoment
Intraduction and Risk Profile . : Lo . : . . .
Company slarted of lis operations 1n 1934 with Credit card Issuance. This process of risk management is erilleal to company's vision, and halds very hgh Importance In
lhe board govemance. The company is exposed ko credil sk, liquidity risk and market risk, iis also subject lo various operating and business risks.

[a)Risk management structure .

Credlt risk [s the sk of Incuming financlal loss 1o lhe company due lo the defanlt of company’s cuslomers in fulliing their contractual obligallons to U campany. The
credit risk management laam repods to Ghief Risk Officer. The Chlaf Risk Offlcer meets with the Audit and Risk Managament Commrittes {ARMC} Independently every
quarter, Credit fisk arlses mainty from loans and advances {o ralail cuslomers arising on account of facilitating credit card loans {o cusiomers

Credit risk management approach

Managing credit risk is the mosl Impariant part of tolal risk management exerclse, The Company’s credit risk sub function headed by Chlef Risk Offtcer [CRQ) 1s
responslble for e key policies and processes for managing credit fsk, which include formulaling eredil pofictes and risk raling frameworks, guiding the Company's
appelile for oredlt risk expasures, undertaking independent revlews and ohjective assessment of eredil risk, and monltaring performance and management of porfolios.
The principal oblectives being maintaining a strong cullure of responsitle fending across the Cempany, and rabust risk pelicies and control framewerks, Implementing
and conlinually re-evalsaling our risk appetite and ensuiing there is adequale moniloring of credit risks, their costs and thelr mitigation. The basic credit risk management
would caver two key areas, viz., (a) customer scleclion & {b) cust g 1t, These are govemed by Board Approved Credit Policy and Golfoctions Pofley which
is ravicwed on a regular basis. Organtzation has werked on strenglhening the credl declsion process wiih pre-qualificalion af the probable customers and scianlific
selection based on flability score model doveloped Intemally for appropriale customer seleciion and largating. We have made mutliple interveniions thraughout the year
ta strengthen (he acquisilion quality. This has led to Improvement n approval rales In the current financlal year. The changes nclude discontinuatlon of programs,
revision In MCP, scorecard level changes ele. Credil Gmil assignment Is a funciion of inceme capachy and risk assessment dono for lhe Individual applicant. Risk
assessment is done based on iniemal scorecards thal aca based on applicant bureau history, application profils and demographic variables. Furthar, we assess the
credit history indicalors as detenmined by independent 3rd party agencies — exlemal rating, bureau reporting, RBI negative fist and assel dassificallon letters from
bankers,

Fost acqulsition parifelio delinquency management is carisd cul Brough Account Manzgemenl System, which includes:

~Fraud deteclion

<Parifolio quality review

«Credit line increase

«Cross sell on cards

«Behaviour scorecard; and

*Collection score card etc,

Tha Company deploys right lechnalogy and resources {o ensura the same, The Company has deployed practicesfanalytics such as the following o monftor and mitigate
eredlt Definguency melics have bean developad and conslanty evalugted & porticlle interventions jaading to better quality of ncoming rew aceounts Strong collection
practices driving consistent Improvemnents in collection meldcs 8leveraging the lates! credit bureau information ta Improve recoverios from oider pools Strong use of
analyllcs in measuring and manitoring credit sk are used such as;Seorecards assessing defaull risk & payment propensty Predictive Business Analytics Models

The key elements in caleulation of ECL are as follows:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

All exposures that are not credil impalred and where Ihere has nol been a signlicant increasa In credl risk since initial racagnition or lhat have low credlt rizk at the
reporting date and (hat are nol credil |mpalred upon origination are classified under ihls stage. Exposures with days past due {(DPD] ess han o equal lo 30 days are
classlfied as stage 1.

For thesa assets, 12-month ECL is recognized and [nterest revenue {s calculated on the gross camying amount of the assel {that {5, withoul deduclion for credil
allvwance).

Slage 2; Lifetine ECL —~ not cred(t Impairad
For credil exposures where Lhere has been a significant increase in oredit risk since Initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, are classified under {his stage,

Expesuras with DPD grealer than 30 days bul less than or equat to B9 days are dassified as slage 2, For these assats, lifellime ECL aro recognized, bul inleresl revenue
{5 slill calculaled on the gross cacying amount of the assel.

Stage ¥ Lifelime ECL ~ credil Impaired
Flnancial assel is assessed as credil Impaired when ane or mare evenls that have a detrimental impact an the estimaled fulure cash Nows of lhat asset have occured.

For Fnancial assels thal have become credit impalred, a lifeimo ECL is recognised on principal oulstanding as at peried end. Exposures with DPD equal 1o of more than
a0 days are classificd as stage 3.

The table halow shows the credit qualily and the exposura to tredit risk based on the year-end stage classification. The amounts presonted are gross of

Impalrment allowancas.
As an 3 st March 2022

Gross Expeciod Nel
Category Assets calegory Carrying P_ Carrying PD
Credit Loss

Amount Amotnt
Slage 1 Credil card 12.644.85 BOB.81 11,836.04 | 570 % 10 14.49%
Slaga 2 Credil card 559.55 10939 45016 | 0.30 % to 43%
Stage 3 Credil card 107884 210,54 168.30 { 75% lo 180%
Tuotal 14,283.24 1,0828.74 12,454.50
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As on 31st March 2021

fssets Grass Expected et
. Calegory Carrying . Carrylng " PD
. ' . ) caltsgory Amaunt Crel:[ll Loss Amount -

Stage 1 Credil card 7.593.81 595.97 7,00585 | 0.50% to B.77%
Stage 2 Credil card 427.50 94,05 33345 | 2.45% lo 29.56%
| Stage 3 Cradit card £33.53 653.53 - 100%
Total 8,774.04 1,344.55 7,430.30

An analysis of changes in the gross carmmylng amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relatfon to laans:

As at March 31, 2022

Risl. categori Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Tolal

internal rating grade

Performing

High grade {0 DPD) 1264483 - - 12,644.83
Standard grade (1-30 OFD) 0,03 ). - - 0.03

- {Sub-standard grade (:11-60 DFD) - 544 63 - 544.63

Past due bul nof fmpaired {61-88 OPY) - 14.92 - 14.92

Men- performing

ndividually Impaired (30 DPD and above, restuclured 15} - - 1,078.84 1,076.84

Tolal 12,644,85 559,55 1,078.84 14,282.24
-As at March 31, 2021

-|Risk cateqori Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Perdorming

High grade {G OPD} 7,083,51 - - 708351
Slandard grade (1-30 OPD) 610.31 - - 610.31
Sub-standard grade {31-60 DPDY) - 22776 - 227 76

Pas! due but nol impalred {61-88 DR} - 19974 - 18974

Non- performing

Individually impaired {80 DPD and above, restruclured assels) - - 553,53 653.53

Total 7.693.81 427 .50 651.51 8,774.B4

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the eorespanding ECL aliowances in relation lo loan ,
As at March 31, 2022 :

Farticulars Slage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount as at March 34, 2029 7,693.81 427.50 653,52 8,774.84

Hhew assets origlnated or purchased* 097 .63 551.49 87878 B,568.91

Assels derecognised or repald {excluding wiile ofis} (1,718.9%) {1.83} (510.40) {2,231.14)
Transfers o Slage 1 635.62 (831.80) (4.02) 0,00
Translers Lo Slage 2 (591.50) 582,19 - (9.21}
Translers lo Slage 3 (471.719) (408.00) 594,57 {285.22}
Changes 1o contraciua! cash flows due lo modifications not resulting in -
derecognilion

Amounts written aff {0.21} - {534.63) {534 B4

Gross carrylng amount as at March 31, 2022 12,644 86 559.55 1,078.84 14,283.24

As at March 21, 2021

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrylng ameunt as af &pril 1, 2020 4,035.68 362.28 284.29 4,702.55

Mew agsels ofiginated or purchased* 4,183.15 222.50 {9.47) §,286.18

Assels derecognlzed or repaid {excluding write ofis) {127.579) {3.28} {18.01} (143.85)
Transfars 1o Slage 1 123,80 {123.58} (0.03) Q.00
Tranzfers 1o Slage 2 (168.12} 168.12 - -
Transfers 1o Slage 3 (352.93 (218.55) 571.48 0,00}
Changes 1o contractual cash Nows due o medlficaions rol resulting in

derccopnilion

Amounts written off {0.21) - {174.83) (175,03

Gross carrylng amount as al March 34, 2021 7,693.81 427 50 65352 8,774 84
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Reconcillalion of ECL balance
_As at March 31,2022

TPartlculars . Stage 1 Slage 2 Stage 3 Total

" |impaimment allowaance for loans 1o'customers as at March 31, 2021 594,97 54.05 651.52 1,344.55
Assels derecognised of regaid (165,34} {183 {510.40} (677 .57)
New assets originated 404,60 58.33 679,40 1,142,233
Reversal of COVID averlay -
Impact on yaar end ECL of Exposuras lransferred between slages -
during the year
Transfers Lo Slage 1 51,23 {62 .87) {4.02) {15.68)
Transfers lo Slage 2 (41.54) £7.13 B 1569
Transfers lo Slage 2 (36.90) {35.42) 626.66 654 34
Changes lo models and inpuls used for ECL calculations -
Amounls written off {0.21) - (534,63} {534.84)
Impalrment allowance for leans bo customers-as at March 31, 2022 808.81 100,28 910.54 1,828.71
s at March 31, 2021
Particuiars Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Total
Impzicment allowance for loans to customers as at Aprll 1, 2020 ooz BY.63 284.43 §72.24
Asseis derecognised or repald (6.99) {0.37) {18.01) {2537
New assels odginaled 321.03 776 493,65 B93.42
COVID ovarlay {10.72} (10,13} - {20.84)
Impacl on year end ECL of Expasures transferred belwaen stages -
during the year
Trensfers lo Siage | 2271 (22.60) {0.02) {0.00)
Transfars lo Slage 2 {9.97} 997 - -
Transfars lo Slage 3 (25,13} {431 fi8.26 (0.0

- |Changes o models and Inpuls used for ECL cafculations -
Amounts wrillen aff . {0.08} - {174.83) (174.81)
impaimment altowance for loans to customers as at March 31, 2021 596,97 9405 653,53 1,344.55
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(3] L!quldlty;r risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the current and prospeciive risk arising oul of am inability te meel financial commilments as they fall dus, through available ash Rows or through the sale ‘of ssels at fair market
value, it Includes both, the risk of Unexpectad increases in Lho cost of funding an aissel partfafie & approprials malurities and the risk of baing unable to liquidate a pesitian In & lmety manner at 2
reasonable price.

Tha Company manages liquidily risk by malntaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having access it funding throtgh an adequate amount of committed credit fines. Glven the need
lo fund diverse products, ha Company maintains Nexibiity In funding by maintaining availabillty under commitled credit llnes to meet obllgations when duc. Management regutarly monilers the
posillon of cash and cash equiaients vis-3-vis prejections. Assessimant of maturily profites of financial asssts and financial fiabllilas including debt financing plans and maintenance of Bafaricy
Sheal Hguidity ratios are considered whila reviewing the lquldity posltion,

We manage liquidily risk in accordance with our Assel Liability Management Pollcy, This policy is framed as per tha cument regulatary guidelines and is approved by the Beard of Directors, Tha
Assat Liabllity Management Pelicy is d perioticaly lo incorparale changes as required by regulatery stipulation er o realign the pollcy with changes in the economic landscape, The Assal
Liabllity Commitlae (ALCO) of the Company formudates and reviews skralegies and provides guidanca for management of liquidity risk wilhin the framewark taid oulin the Asset Llabillty Managamant

Pulicy.

The table below summarises tha maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's fInanclal asschs and

M March 2022

Particulars On demand|  Up to one Cre month to 2 2monthsio 3  [3manths to| € months [ § yearto 3] 3 yoars te |rnore than § Total
Manth months months 6 months | to 1 year years 5 years years
Financial assets
Cash snd cash gquivatanis 695.97 B95.97
Bani'balance cther than above @12 - - . - - - N . o012
Receivablas 26,23 3577 3577 63,45 .48 3577 - - 23B8.44
Loans 7.108.87 241775 451.98 94332 §40.00 273.23 168.35 1245450
Investimants - - - - - - - - - -
Cther linancial assets - 45.01 - - a1y B7.88 12.87 - - 1580.00
Total undlscounted fi Tal assets £896.03 7.182.10 2,453.51 SA7.75 1.078.94 645.31. 321.97 168,35 - 13,5635.02
Fnansial labitilies
Trade Fayatlas - Q817 20,50 15.45 - - - - - 154.52
Debl securilies - - - 495.82 - - - - 499.20 845,02
Bomowings {other than debt securitles} - 190.01 - 2,500.00 2500000 4,100.00 760,04 - - 10,050.05
Cther financial liabililles - 191.23 6.10 7.90 624 6.16 1318 - - 230.81
Total undisecunted ial {labilitics - 483,40 7N 309147 2506241 4106816 77322 - A29.20 11,430.40
31 March 2021
Particutars Ondemand|  Up to one One month ta 2 Z2months to 1 |3 months to| & months {1 yoarte 3| 3 years to |[marathan 5 Taotat
Month months manths 6 manths | to{ year years § yeara yoars
Financlal assets
Cash and cash eguivalenls 158,84 - - - - - - - - 158.84
Bank balance sthar than above - - - - - - - - - -
Raceivablas - A0.03 54.59 6459 127.37 3275 54.59 - - 363.91
Leans - 4,22536 1,450.95 £93.95 563.46 33203 204.55 - - 7.430.30
Investmenls - - - - - - - - - -
Other linancial assals - 39.57 - ~ 4.91 B2.49 12.66 - - 139.63
Total undi inted financial assats 156,84 17.51 1,5456.54 648.54 T15.74 447,27 271.80 - - 8,052.68
Financial Rabililics
Trade Payables - 2382 2424 16.13 807 - - - - 7223
Dahi securilies - - 1,242.68 1,238.60 1,083.80 - - - 49910 q,064.28
Bomowings (sther than debl securities} - 805.55 40000 - - 600,00 697.90 - - 2,503.45
Other inancial liabililles - 125.99 715 1017 7.94 6.10 13.22 hed - 170.58
Total undiscounted financial liakilities - 955,36 1.674.04 1,764.90 1,065.91 606,10 71142 - 499,10 & 610,54
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{c) Marfcet risl

The Company is expased lo inlerest rata risk as il has assels and liabililies based on Boating [nterest rates as well, Tha Company has an epproved Assets and Liabllity Management polley which
empawers the Assets and Liabliidy Management Commiltes_{ALCO) lo assess the inleres! rale rsk run by It and provide eppropriale guidelines lo the Treasury to manage {hie risk, Tha ALCO
reviews Lhe interest risk on periodic basis and decides on the assets profile and lhe appropriale finding mix, The ALCO reviews the inlerast rate gap stalement and thia Inerest rate sansiivity
arialysis,

Financial Assats As March 21, 2022 As March 31, 2021

Fixed- rate instrumenis 12,454,50 7,430.30
Finallng-rata instruments - -
total 12,454.50 7,430,230
Fi faf Liahilitics As March 31, 2022 As March 21, 2021

Fixed- rate ingtruments 995,02 499,11
Floatingrate instruments 10,050.05. ) 516517
total 11,045.06 5,664.26

Fair value sensitivity analysls far floating- rate instruments.

The senstivity analysis balow have been determined based on exposure to the interest rates for financial fnstruments et the end of the reporting peried and Lhe siiputated change 1aking place al lhe
beginning of the firancial year and held constant lhrough out the reperling period in case of instruments that have floating rates. If the interest rate had been 100 basis points higher of lower and all
olhar variables wars constant, the Company prafil before lax would have changed by the fallowing.

Farifculars As March 31, 2022 As March 31, 2021

100 bps higher| 400 bps lowaer 100 bps higher 100 bps
lowor
| Impact on prafil (81.24} 8124 {4510} 45.10

{d) Operational risk ) ) . )
Qperalional risk is the risk of Joss resulling from inadeguale or failed intamal processes, people and system or from external evenls. The Company's foouses on managamen and conlrol of
operalional risks through a comprehensive system of intermal controls and manitoring performiance of each funclien againsl defined thresholds.

P a8l risk q 1\ ompfisas idantification end assessment of risk end conrols, new products and process approval framaworls, measurement through operalfonal risk incidents,
manitoring through kay risk indicalors and mitigaticn through procass and condrol enhancamant,

Note 44: Expenditure in forefgn cutrency

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income in Foreign currency

Income from credit card international operation, Currency canversion

charges, Business Developrment incentive income 23.61 372
Total 23.61 25.72
Expenditure in forelgn currency

scheme charges o - 309.84 26195
Total 309.84 263.96
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45  Un-redeemed Reward Po!n:.s :

The Campany has a reward poind program which allows card members to eam polnts based on spends Lhrough the cards that can be
redeemed for cash, In addition, Company has designed a Reward & Recognilion pragram for sourclng credil card through branches
of the Holding Company. Accordingly ihe aliglble empioyees of the HoldIng Cempany is rewarded with bonus points through a credit
in thelr card accounts, The liabllity for rewards points outslanding as af the year end and expected fo be redeemed in the future Is
accounted for on ihe basls of actuarfal valuation.
Movement af provision for rewards poinis expenses,

Particulars As AL21.00,2022 | As At 31.03.2021
Provision at the beginning of the year 281.33 42,25
Add: Addition made during the year 323.64 139,66
Less- Amount used during the year 259.93 100,59
Less:- Unused amounts reversed durng the year - -
Amount at the end of {he year . . 145.04 8133

46  Interchange fees pald during the financlal year Is net of Rs, 223,80 mn on account of the input tax credlt clalm peratning {o financial
year 2021-22 s under review wilh Bank ol Barada,

47 In respect of accounts recelvables, the Company 1s regulacly generating and dispatching customer stalements on pedodfc Interval
wherever fransaclions or outslanding are there. In case of dispules with regard lo billing, there is a process of resolution and
adjusimenls aro carred out on regular basls. Mareover, in respect of accounts payable, the Company has a pracess of receiving
regufar balance confirmalion from s vendors. The balances are reconciled with the balance confimmation received and
discrepancies, if any ara accounled on regular basis. For the year end balances of Account Receivables, Account Payables and
Loans & Advances, the management ts of the opinjon (hat adjustrents, if any required through the above-menlioned process, will nel
have any material impacl an the financials of the Company.

48 Prevlous Year's figures have been regrouped, and/ or rearranged and/ or reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable
with current year's figures,

49  Schedule of Balance sheet of Systernically lmporlanl Mon-depaosil laking Non-Banking Financial Company as requlved In terms of
Paragraph 19 of Syslemically Imporianl Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank} Directions,
2018

Sr. NO. |Pardiculars As at 315t March 2022 As at 1ist March 2021
Lizbllites slde
Loans and Advances avalied by the NBFC's] Amount Amount overdue Amaount Amount overdue
incluslve of interest accrued thereon but not] outsfanding outstanding
palc.
a) Debenlure: Secured it il il Wil
Unsecured 498,20 il 48911 Ml
{other than falllng within lke meaning of public
deposil)

1[5y Defered credils Nif Nil il i
¢ Terms Loans Nl il il Mit
d} Inter-corporate loans & borowing NI Nil Nii NIt
&) Cornmerclal paper Nl Nil M NI
1} Public Deposil
q} Dlher loans
-Cash Credit facility & Working capltal ferm loan 10,116.57 il 2,584.65 Nit

2 Break-up of {1} above (Culstanding public
deposils inclusive of interes{ accrued thereon but
nol paid) :

a} In the form of Unsecured debentures NI il il Ml

b} In the form of partly secured debenlures je, MIE il Nl Nil

debentures where there is a shorifal! In the value

of security

) Other public depasils Mil Mil il il

b} Linsecurad il il it Mil
Parllculars As at 31st March Az at 3{st March

Assets side 2022 2021

Brzak-up of Leans & Advances Including bllis rece{vables {other than those Amount Amount outstanding

3 incluged in [4) balow; cutstanding
a) Secured 17344 247,96
b} Unsecured 14,109.80 B,526.89
Break-up of Leased Assets & Stock en Hire and other assets counting lowards

a) Lesse assets Including lease rantals under sundry deblors,
1} Finance t ease Nl Ml
i} Qperating Lease NI Nil

4 b} Stock on hire Including hire charges under sundry debtors: )

I} Assets on hire Nil NIl

ii} Hepossessed Assels il il
c) Olher loans counting towards AFC activities

iy Loans where assels have been Hil Nil

il} Lerans olher than {a) abave Nit Nil
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As at 31st March | As at 31stMarch

Break-up of [nvestments . ’ .
2032 2021
Currant Investment
Qugted
I} Shares : Equity . Mil il
: Prelerence Nil il
iij Debentures and bonds Nl ull]
ill) Unit of mutual funds M i}
v Govemmenl securilies il NIl
v} others {please spacily} NH il
Unquoted
) Shares : Equlty Nil [
: Prelerence Hil il
i) Debentures and bonds i Nil Nil
fil} Unil-of muual funds : ' . Nl il
| Iv} Government securities il il
v} others {ploase specify) M [all}
Long Term Investment
Queted
i} Shares ; Equity . il il
“: Pralerence | ) ) Nil . Nif
| __li} Debenlures and bonds : il Bl
1ily Unit of muluaf funds il NI
Iv) Govemment securities Nil Nil
¥} uthars {please apecify) Mil il
Unguoted
i) Shares ; Equily Nil il
: Preference . ) M il
li) Debenlures and bonds it Nit
Hil} Unit of mutual funds Nl Ni
) Government securities Nil Nit
v} others {please specify) il Nl
Borower group-wise classificatlon of assels financed as In (2} and (3} abova:
Category As at 3151 March 2022 As at 315t March 2021
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
1} Relaled parlies
Subsidiarles il il Wil NIl
) Companies In the same group Nil 0.50 it o142
i} Cither related parly il NI Nil Nil
2y Other than related parlles -, 17344 | 14,109.21 247.96 8,526.77

lInvestor group-wise classification of ali Investments {current and fong term) In share and securities (both quoted and
unguoted)

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Markat value! | Book value {Net of Markat value/ Book value {Mat of
Breakup or provislon) Breakup or falr provision]
Category tair value or value or NAV
NAY

1} Related parlles

1} Subsidiaries it il Hil i

i} Companies in the same gioup il Nif Ml Mt

fil) Other related parly [ulll il NIF NI
23 Cither than relaled parlies NIl i NIl NIl
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(Figure in Rupees in millions, unfess otherwlse staled)

[ Other information :
Partlcuiars 31st March 2022 34st March 2021
Gross Mon-pedomming Assets
i) Related Paries NIt il
] ily Other than refaled parties 1,078.84 651,53
Net Non-performing Assets {nel of provision made) :
i} Relaled Paries Ml il
iy Other han relaled parties Mk il
Asgels acquired on salislaction of Debl it il
50  Disclasure of Restructured Accounts Mot applicable
51 .

' Assets classHicalion as per RBI norms Assatls Gross carrying . loss allowances Met carrying amount |Pravisfon Differance
ciasslfication jamountas perind j(provislons) as requlred as per|between Ind AS
as per [ND AS |AS required under [ND IRACP norms |109 provislon

As 109 and 1IRACP
Norms

Performing Assets

Stage 1 12,644.85 724.16 11,920,689 . 670,48
Standard Stage 2 559.55 109,39 450,18 5367 {0539
Sitlolal 13,204.40 823.55 12,370.85 5367 778.88
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Loss Slage 3 1.078.84 510.54 168.20 768.14 122.40
Sub tolal of NFA 1,078.84 910.54 166.30 780.14 122,40
Other {lem such as guarantees, foan Slage 1 1,572.16 84,65 - - 84.65
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Ind {Slage 2 - - - - -
AS 108 bul not covered under current Income Slage 3 N - - - N
Racognilion, Assols classilicalion and
provisioning norms, - - - -
Subtatal 1,572.16 84,65 - - 84,65

Slage 1 14,2470 808,81 13,408.20 53.67 755.14
Total Slage 2 559.55 109.39 450.16 - 109.39

Stage 3 1,078.84 910.54 168,30 788.14 122.40
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BaB Financial Salutien Ltd

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022

. (Figure in Rupees in miltions, unless otherwise stated)

52 The disclosuras as roquired under REI Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Impoﬂant Non-Dreposit taking Ccmpany and
Deposit taking Company (Resen.re Bank} Dlrecimns 2016

1

5

Addltional d|sciosure

Capita!

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 21, 2021
CRAR (%) 17 .86% 19.61%
CRAR - Tier § Capilal (%) 13.03% 12,80%
CRAR - Tier |l Capital {%) 4.83% 6.80%
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capilal 500,00 500,00
Amounit ralsed by |ssue of Perpelual Debt Instruments Wil Ml

Investments
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1) Value of Investments

iy Gross Value of Investmenls

In India Nil Nil
Outside India Nil Nil
i} Provislons for Depreciation

In india Nil il
Dulslde India Nit i
Hily Met Value of investments | . .
In India Nii Wil
Qutside India Nil Wil
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investmenls

Opening balanca Nil Nil
Add : Provisions made during the year Nit Nil
Less ; White-off | write-back of excess provisions during the year Bl Nil
Closing balance Wil ]

Derivatives
There is no derivatives tmnsaction during the year.
Currency options § currency futire : Not applicable

Forward Rate Agresment { lnlerest Rate Swap ;- Mot Applicable
Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives:- Not Applicahile
Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Dervatives:- Not Applicable

Disclosures relating to Securitisalion:- No such transaction during the year.
Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisallon / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:- Not Applicable
Delails of Assignment lransactions underaken by applicable NBFGs:- Not Applicable

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased f sold: No such transaction during the year.

Asset Liability Management .-

Maturity pattern of cerain items of Assels and Liabilities as at 31st March 2022
upto 30731 | Over t month { Over 2 monlh mi:: ?up mgr:rt;rli 1 QOver { year yg:f:oss Over s Total
days up to 2 Month jup to 3 Month 106 month**|  year to Byears years years
Borrowing from banks 190,01 - 2,500.00 2,500.00] 4,100.00 760.04 - - 10,050,05
Markst borowlngs 495,82 499.20 995,02
Recelvables# 7,108.87 241775 951.98 993,32 540,00 273.23| 168.35 12,454.50
Investments -
** redit Receivables are based on average collections in fasl 6 months.
# Receivables include Long lerm & shert lerm Ioans and advances related 1o Credit card & EMI to customer, (net of NPA )
Maturity pattem of cerlaln items of Assels and Liabilities as al 313t March 2024
upto 30/31 [ Over 1 month | Over 2 menth mg_t‘:: r&aup m(?:tirti 1 Over 1 year yg:ftroas Overs Total
" Ll
days up lo 2 Month up lo 3 Month to & month™ yoar o 3yzars years years
Borrowing from banks 780.69 400.00 = - 6500.00 722.76 - - 2,503.45
IMarket borrowings - 1242 65 1238.59 1083.95 - - -1 499,40 4,064.28
Hecoivablesi# 4,225,36 1,480.85 593.85 583.46 332.02 204.55 - B 7,430.30
invesiments - - - - - - - - -

* Receivables in period 2-3 manths also includes receivables for period 0-30 days & 1-2 monlhs which are balng collecled as such, however the same
will become due after 2 months as we have given moratorium to our custorer as per recent guidelines issued by RBI. )

* rradit Rocoivables are based on average collections in lasl 6 menths.
# Raceivables include Long kerm & shorl term loans and advances related to Credit card, personal loan & EMI to customer, (net of NPA and advance

recaived from credit card holder}

2714
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RoB Financial Solution Lid
Notes to financial staternents for the year ended 31st #ar 2022
{Figure In Rupees in milfons, unless otherwise stated}

{) Exposures To Real Estate Sector

Direcl EXposure : .

Residantial Mortgages - March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Lending fully secured by martgages on resldential property that [s or will be occupled by the borrower or Nil il
Commercial Real Estates -

Lending secured by mortgage on commercial real estates{offica bulldings, relail space, multipurpose Nit il
Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MB8S) and other secured exposures -

a, Residential Mil Nil

B, Commerclal Real Estates it Wil
Indiract exposure

Fund based and nan — fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (MHB) and housing bank Nil Nt

Gompanies {HFCs}

li} Exposure to Capltat Market
e — e A e

March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022
direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debenlures and units of equity- Nil Nil
advances against shares { bonds / debentures of ather securities or on clean basis to individuals for Nil Nil
advances for any ather purposes where shares or canvertible bonds or convertibie debentures or units il Nil
advances for any olher purposes to the extent secured by the cellaleral security of shares or convertible Nil Hil
secured and unsecured advances to stackbrokers and guarantees issued on behall of stockbrokers and il Mil
loans sanctioned to corperates agalnsl the securily of shares / bonds f debentures or other secunties or Nil Wil
bridge loans 1o companies agalnst expected equity flows / issues; Nil Nil
all exposures ta Veniure Capital Funds (both regisiered and unregistered) il M
Total Exposuie to Caplial Market Wik il
Details of financing of parent company products
The company has nol financed any of the product of ils parent company during the financial year 2021-22,
Details of Single Borrower Limit {SGL) / Croup Borrower Limit (GBL) exceaded by the applicable NBFC
The company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the financial year 2021-22.
Company has not sanctioned any ioan agalnst (he intangible security during the financlal year 2021-22,
{iiThe company has cbtained registration from following regulator apart frem R8I

Particulars Registration number,
Cerlificate of incorporation under Companies Act 1956. Ua5980MH1 994301081616
NBFC registration 13.01305

{ii) During the financial year 2021-22, BFSL have pald Rs.2000/- as penally to RB! & Rs.10004- penalty to SEBI,

{iil) Related Party Transaction:-
For relaled party transaction please refer note no. 37

{iv) Remuneration lo Direclars
For remuneration to Directors pleass refer note no, 37,

{v) Net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies.
Plaase refer note no 3%,

{vi} The short term debt rating of the company is A1+ by CRISIL and india Rating & Research Pl Lid. The long lerm debt rating is AdAfstable by India

Rating & Research Pvi. Lid and ICRA. There is no change in the rating during FY 2021-22.

{vii) Revenue Recognilion:-
For Revenue Recognition please refer note na. 3(1).

i) Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of Provisions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provisions for deprecialicn on Investrment Nl Bl

Provislon fowards stage 3 t 910.54 653.53
Provislon for slage 1 and stage 2 assats 318,20 £91.02
Pravision made towards lncome tax 679.82 £57.57
Oither Provision and Contingencies fwith details) - -
Provision for reward points 145,04 81,33
Provision for Gratuity - -
Provision for fraud : - 4.38 515
Proyision for Leave encashment 7.48 1767
Provision for Staff Incentive 24,75 0.44
Provision for Expenses 485.61 336.82
Pravision for CSH Expenses - 1.91

Noie: No provision has been made for contingencies. Refer nate no 38.

i) There is na draw down from the reserve during the financial year 2021-22.
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BoB Financial Solution Ltd
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 315t Mar 2022
(Figure In Rupesas in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1li} a) Concentration of Advances

March MM, 2022

Parficulars March 31, 2021
Total advance of largest twenty borrowers” . 2.27 : 28.63
percentage of Advance 1o largest twenty borrowers to total advances of 0.23% 0.24%
*The Advances dencles the outstanding balances of standard twenty bomower.

iii) b¥Concentration of Exposure

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Expasure to largest twenty borrowers * 77.80 102.55
percentage of exposure to twenty {argest_bormowers to total advances of 0.54% 1.147%

il} ¢)Cencentration of NPAs

*The oxposures denoles the total credit eard limit against the top bventy borrower,

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Total Exposura to top four NPA accounts*

7.22

5.490

lii} d) Sector-wise NPAs

* The exposure lo NPA is only principal oulstanding. The income is fully de-tecegnised and limit is already blocked from these custoner,

Particulars % of NPAs te Total March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Agriculiure & allied activities Hil Nl Nit

MSME Nil Nil Nil
Corpuorate bomowers credit cards Nil NIl it

Sepvices : Nil Nil Nl
Unsgecured perscnal loans Wil Mil il

Aulo loans Nil Nil il

Other personal loans credit cards 7.55% 1,078.84 §53.53

iv] Moverneat of NPAs

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%} Nil Nil

i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

Opening balance 653.53 284 .49
Add:- Additlons durdng the year 1,557.91 358.06
Less:-Written of as Bad Debts 531.00 174 86
Less;- Reductions during the year 641,80 44,16
Closing balance 1,078.84 653.53
i} Movernent of Net NPAs

Opening balance 290.71 Mil
Add:- Additions during the year Nit Nil|
Less-Reductions during the year il Nﬂl
Clesing balance 290,71 Nil
iv} Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding provisions on standard

asséts)

COpening balance 653,53 284,49
Add:-Provisions made during the year 1,307.20 588.06
Less:-Wiritten off as Bad Debts 530.99 174 86
Less;-write-back of excess provisions 641.60 44,16
Closing balance 788.14 853.53
The company does nol have any joint vanture of overseas subsidiarias,

Oft-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored:-

There is no ofi-balance sheet 5PYs sponsored by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2021,

Disclosure of customer Complaints

Particutars March 31, 2022 Narch 21, 2021

No, of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 294 2,076
No. of complainis received during the year 1.05,748 61,459
o, of complainds redressed during the year 1,05,263 63,241
Mo, of complainls pending al the end of the year 778 254

©® :
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BoB Financial Sofution 1ed
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st Mar 2022
{Figure in Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Public disclosure on liquidify risk as at 31st March 2022

i} funding Concentration based on significant counterparly {Both Deposits and Borrowings)

Name of significant counterparty Amount % of Tatzl Deposit: % of Total Liabiiity
5 {five) refer point 3 below for name of the counierparty. 10,695.65 |N.A. | B6.42%
Mote: Total liability daes not include equity share capltal and olher equity.
i} Tap 20 farge deposis - Not Applicable
iy Ton 10 borrowings
Name of the bank Amount % to total horrowing
HOFC Bank 4,000.00 36,22%
Bank of Baroda 3,450,05 31.24%
Hongkong & shanghai Banking Corporation 2,600.00 23.54%
Mirae Asset Mutual Fund 495,80 4.45%
Bank Of Baroda Provident Fund Trust 141,80 1.36%
WE State Electricity Transmission Co Limited Employees’ Pension Fund 99.80 0.90%
HvPHL Employees Pension Fund Trust 89,80 0.81%
Bank Of Baroda (Employees} Pension Fund 49.50 0.45%
Board Of Trustess For Bokare Steel Employeges Provident Fund 49.50 0.45%
Lupin Ltd Employees Provident Fund Trusl 20.00 0.18%
Total 11,005.15 99,64%
v} funding Cencentration based on slgnificant counterparty
Hame of [nstrument / product Amount % of Total Liability
Bank lines 10,050,058 51.21%
Commercial paper 495,52 4.01%
NCD 499.11 4.03%
(v} Stock Ratios:
Sr, no Namae of the Instrurment / % of total % of total %% of total
product public fund Assets Liabilities
1 Commercial paper N.A. 327% 4.01%
2 Non- Convertible Debentures  |[N.A, N.A. N.A,
foriginal maturity <1 years)
3 Other Short term liabilities MLA. 66,18% 81.21%

Note: Tolal liability does nat include equity share capltal and other equity.

tvi) Institutional set.up for liquidity risk management:- Liquidity represent the ability of the company 1o generate sufiicient cash flow lo meet financial
obligation, bolh under normal and strassed condilions, without liquidating assets or raising funds at unfavourable lerms. the operations of the company

give rise to Assets Liability mismaltches and liquidity risks,

In order to manage lhese risks the Company has a Board approved Assets Liability Management policy in place prepared on the basis of RBI guidslines
and Intemal factors specific to our business, Tha policy is reviewed on annual basis.
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